BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Meeting #:
Date:
Location:

557
April 9, 2021, 9:30 a.m.
Meeting to be Held Electronically

MEMBERS:

K. (Karen) Ras
T. (Tom) Adams
J. (John) Brennan
S. (Stephen) Dasko
J. (Johanna) Downey
A. (Ann) Lawlor
M. (Matt) Mahoney
M. (Martin) Medeiros
M. (Michael) Palleschi
G. (Grant) Peters
J. (John) Stirk

REGRETS:

R. (Ron) Starr

(Chair)
(Vice Chair)

STAFF PRESENT: D. (Deborah) Martin-Downs
G. (Gayle) Soo Chan
T. (Tim) Mereu
J. (Jeff) Payne
J. (Josh) Campbell
J. (John) Sinnige
T. (Tamara) Chipperfield
C. (Claudia) Kasperowicz
R. (Roger) Tharakan
J. (Jon) MacMull
T. (Terri) LeRoux
J. (Janet) Ivey
E. (Eric) Baldin
A. (Ashoo) Anand
M. (Min) Young Lee
C. (Craig) Jacques
H. (Holly) Nadalin
R. (Rose) Fitzpatrick
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CAO
Director, Watershed Knowledge
Director, Watershed Management
Director, Corporate Services
Director, Planning & Development
Services
Associate Director, Watershed
Management
Corporate Secretariat
Administrator, CAO's Office
Sr. Manager, Financial Services
Sr. Manager, Marketing & Communications
Sr. Manager, PARCS
Chief Specialist, Watershed Plans &
Source Water Protection
Manager, Land Planning & Management
Sr. Coordinator, Multicultural Outreach
Accountant
Specialist, Watershed Plans & Source
Water Protection
Program Manager, Community Outreach
Administrator, Corporate Services

OTHERS
PRESENT:

1.

Learie Miller (Region of Peel),
Joane Mui (KPMG), David
Bennett (Hamilton 350)

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
37/21
Moved By Ann Lawlor
Seconded By Matt Mahoney
RESOLVED THAT the agenda be approved as distributed.
CARRIED

2.

DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

3.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
38/21
Moved By Tom Adams
Seconded By Johanna Downey
RESOLVED THAT the minutes of the 556th meeting of Credit Valley Conservation
Authority held March 12, 2021 be approved.
CARRIED

4.

PRESENTATION / DELEGATION
4.1

PRESENTATION: MULTICULTURAL ENGAGEMENT AND DIVERSITY,
EQUITY, INCLUSION AND RACISM (DEIR) INITIATIVES AT CVC
Ashoo Anand, Sr. Coordinator, Multicultural Oureach gave a presentation to
members on the above-mentioned subject.
39/21
Moved By Ann Lawlor
Seconded By Martin Medeiros
RESOLVED THAT the presentation entitled "Multicultural Engagement and
Diversity, Equity, Inclusion and Race (DEIR) Initiatives at CVC" presented by
Ashoo Anand, Sr. Coordinator, Multicultural outreach be received.
CARRIED

5.

BUSINESS ARISING FROM MINUTES
2

6.

NEW BUSINESS STAFF REPORTS
6.1

DEVELOPMENT, INTERFERENCE WITH WETLANDS, AND ALTERATIONS
TO SHORELINES & WATERCOURSE APPLICATIONS
Attached as Schedule 'A' are Development, Interference with Wetlands, and
Alterations to Shorelines and Watercourse applications, pursuant to Ontario
Regulation 160/06, as approved by staff and presented for members' information.
40/21
Moved By Matt Mahoney
Seconded By John Brennan
RESOLVED THAT the Development, Interference with Wetlands and Alterations
to Shorelines and Watercourse applications, pursuant to Ontario Regulation
160/06, as approved by staff, be received and appended to the minutes of this
meeting as Schedule 'A'; and further
THAT the staff approvals for each be endorsed.
CARRIED

6.2

APPROVAL OF DRAFT 2020 YEAR END AUDITED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
Attached as Schedule 'B' is a report on the above-mentioned subject as
submitted by Roger Tharakan, Sr. Manager, Financial Services; and Jeff Payne,
Deputy CAO and Director, Corporate Services.
41/21
Moved By Grant Peters
Seconded By Stephen Dasko
RESOLVED THAT the report entitled “Draft 2020 Year End Audited Financial
Statements” including the “2020 Financial Statements” audited by KPMG be
received and appended to the minutes of this meeting as Schedule ‘B’; and
THAT the board approves the audited statements and authorizes the Chair and
Vice Chair to sign the Final 2020 Year End Audited Financial Statements; and
further
THAT Final 2020 Year End Audited Financial Statements be provided to the
members of the Board for the May 14, 2021 Board meeting.
CARRIED
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6.3

2020 KPMG AUDIT FINDINGS REPORT
Attached as Schedule 'C' is a report on the above-mentioned subject as
submitted by Roger Tharakan, Sr. Manager, Financial Services; and Jeff Payne,
Deputy CAO and Director, Corporate Services.
42/21
Moved By Matt Mahoney
Seconded By Michael Palleschi
RESOLVED THAT the report entitled “2020 KPMG Audit Findings Report” be
received and appended to the minutes of this meeting as Schedule ‘C’.
CARRIED

6.4

FRIENDS OF THE CREDIT CONSERVATION AWARDS UPDATE
Attached as Schedule 'D" is a report on the above-mentioned subject as
submitted by Holly Nadalin, Program Manager, Community Outreach and
Education; Andrew Kett, Sr. Manager, Education and Outreach; and Jeff Payne,
Deputy CAO and Director, Corporate Services.
43/21
Moved By Johanna Downey
Seconded By John Brennan
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the report entitled “Friends of the Credit
Conservation Awards Update” be received and appended to the minutes of this
meeting as Schedule ‘D’.
CARRIED

6.5

PROVINCIAL CONSULTATION ON GROWING THE SIZE OF THE
GREENBELT
Attached as Schedule 'E' is a report on the above-mentioned as submitted by
Josh Campbell, Director, Planning and Development Services.
44/21
Moved By John Brennan
Seconded By Grant Peters
WHEREAS – the province has requested comment on their Growing the Size of
the Greenbelt initiative (ERO posting #019-3136); and
WHEREAS CVC supports the expansion of the Greenbelt area – including
expanding the Greenbelt Natural Heritage System and Urban River Valley
designations beyond existing designated areas – in consultation with affected
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municipalities and Conservation Authorities to ensure a logical and scientific
approach to their delineation;
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the report entitled “Provincial
Consultation on Growing the Size of the Greenbelt” be received and appended to
the minutes of this meeting as Schedule ‘E’; and
THAT the Board of Directors endorse CVC staff’s comments attached as
Schedule ‘E’, Appendix 1 to this report; and further
THAT the attached comments referenced above be sent to the province, partner
municipalities and adjacent CAs for their consideration and/or information.
CARRIED
6.6

CVC TELECOMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTURE ADMINSTRATIVE POLICY
Attached as Schedule 'F' is a report on the above-mentioned subject as
submitted by Eric Baldin, Manager, Land Planning and Management; Terri
LeRoux, Sr. Manger, PARCS; and Jeff Payne, Deputy CAO and Director,
Corporate Services.
45/21
Moved By Martin Medeiros
Seconded By John Stirk
WHEREAS Credit Valley Conservation has developed a new administrative
policy to generally permit Telecommunication Infrastructure in Conservation
Areas; and
WHEREAS the Credit Valley Conservation Strategic Plan (2020) and
Conservation Areas Master Strategy (2018) include directions that would support
the use of conservation areas for cell tower installations; and
WHEREAS the use of conservation areas for the installation, operation, and
maintenance of telecommunication infrastructure would further the objectives of
Credit Valley Conservation pursuant to Section 20 of the Conservation
Authorities Act, R.S.O. 1990;.
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the report entitled ‘CVC
Telecommunication Infrastructure Administrative Policy’ be received and
appended to the minutes of this meeting as Schedule ‘F’; and
THAT the staff continue to negotiate terms with Rogers Communications Inc. to
locate, as feasible, a cell tower at Upper Credit Conservation Area in the Town of
Caledon; and
THAT the policy outlined in Schedule ‘F’, Appendix 1 of this report be approved;
and
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THAT the fees outlined in Table 1 of this report be approved; and further
THAT staff take necessary action to implement the policy.
CARRIED
7.

CORRESPONDENCE/INFORMATION ITEMS DISTRIBUTED TO MEMBERS
7.1

CORRESPONDENCE: CVC'S ROLE IN TOWN OF ERIN SERVICING AND
SETTLEMENT MASTER PLAN AND URBAN WASTEWATER SERVICING
CLASS EA UPDATE
Briefing note to the CVC Board of Directors dated March 19, 2021 providing an
update of CVC's Role in Town of Erin Servicing and Settlement Master Plan and
Urban Centre Wastewater Servicing Class Environmental Assessment.

7.2

CORRESPONDENCE: DESIGNATION REQUEST FOR THE PROPOSED ERIN
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT PROJECT UNDER THE IMPACT
ASSESSMENT ACT
Letter from the Impact Assessment Agency of Canada dated March 8, 2021
regarding a designation request for the proposed Erin Wastewater Treatment
Plant project under the Impact Assessment Act.

7.3

PRESENTATION: MULTICULTURAL ENGAGEMENT AND DIVERSITY,
EQUITY, INCLUSION AND RACISM (DIRE) INITIATIVES AT CVC
Presentation entitled "Multicultural Engagement and Diversity, Equity, Inclusion
and Racism (DIRE) Initiatives at CVC" presented by Ashoo Anand. Sr.
Coordinator, Multicultural Outreach.
46/21
Moved By Stephen Dasko
Seconded By Matt Mahoney
RESOLVED THAT the information items presented at the 557th meeting of the
Credit Valley Conservation Authority held April 9, 2021 be received.
CARRIED

8.

NOTICE OF MOTION

9.

QUESTION PERIOD

10.

OTHER BUSINESS
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11.

RESOLUTION TO MOVE TO 'IN-CAMERA' SESSION
47/21
Moved By Martin Medeiros
Seconded By Michael Palleschi
RESOLVED THAT the Board move to 'In-Camera' session to discuss professional
services contract matters.
CARRIED
11.1

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT NEGOTIATIONS
A confidential 'In-Camera' report on the above mentioned subject as submitted
by Jeff Payne, Deputy CAO and Director, Corporate Services was presented to
members.

12.

RESOLUTION TO MOVE TO OPEN SESSION
48/21
Moved By John Brennan
Seconded By Stephen Dasko
RESOLVED THAT the Board proceed to open session.
CARRIED

13.

RESOLUTION FOLLOWING 'IN-CAMERA' SESSION
The CVC Board of Directors moved to open session and passed the following
resolution:
49/21
Moved By Tom Adams
Seconded By Matt Mahoney
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the report entitled, “Professional Services
Contract” be received; and further
THAT staff undertake the in-camera direction.
CARRIED

14.

MEETING ADJOURNED
On motion the meeting adjourned at 10:50 a.m.
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DEVELOPMENT, INTERFERENCE WITH WETLANDS, AND ALTERATIONS TO SHORELINES
Schedule 'A'
WATERCOURSES APPLICATIONS (STAFF APPROVED, FOR BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ ENDORSEMENT) 2021-04-09
Owner

Agent

Address

Proposed Works

Complete
Application
Date

Permit
Issued
Date

Ward
No.

City of
Brampton

Wood
Environment
and
Infrastructure
Solutions

Chinguacousy Road Wanless to Mayfield
Part Lots 16 & 17,
Concessions 2 & 3 WHS

Development in a Regulated Area
to facilitate construction of a new
temporary works yard and
associated grading.

2020-08-11

2021-03-10

6

9362 Heritage Road
Part Lot 7, Concession 6 WHS

Development in the Regulated
Area for the purpose of the
construction of a single family
dwelling, septic system, pool,
cabana and site grading.

2021-02-16

2021-03-05

6

Telecon
Design

Chinguacousy Road, South of
Mayfield to Remembrance
Part Lots 16 & 17,
Concession 2 WHS

Development in the Regulated
Area for the purpose of installing
two 807m conduits and
telecommunication cable.

2021-02-23

2021-03-05

6

Noble Prime
Solutions Ltd.

16 Allegro Drive
Part Lot 4, Concession 3 WHS

Development in the Regulated
Area to facilitate construction of
below grade entrance and
windows.

2021-03-02

2021-03-02

4

Urbantech

Part Lots 16 & 17,
Concession 2 & 3 WHS

Alteration to a watercouse to
facilitate the construction of the
East Central Channel (Fletcher's
Creek Headwaters)

2021-03-10

2021-03-11

6

Noble Prime
Solutions Ltd.

52 Ravenswood Drive
Part Lot 13, Concession 1 WHS

Development in the Regulated
Area to facilitate construction of
below grade entrance and
enlarged windows.

2021-03-11

2021-03-11

4

1284 Martin's Boulevard
Part Lot 14, Concession 3 WHS

Development in the Regulated
Area for the purpose of
constructing an in-ground
swimming pool.

2021-03-25

2021-03-29

6

118 Coastline Drive
Part Lot 14, Concession 4 WHS

Development in the Regulated
Area to facilitate construction of
an in-ground pool.

2021-03-29

2021-03-29

6

Permit
No.
Brampton
20/208

21/029

21/047

Bell Canada

21/051

21/052

21/058

TFP Clockwork
Developments
Inc.

21/076

21/077

Square
Design
Consulting
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DEVELOPMENT, INTERFERENCE WITH WETLANDS, AND ALTERATIONS TO SHORELINES
Schedule 'A'
WATERCOURSES APPLICATIONS (STAFF APPROVED, FOR BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ ENDORSEMENT) 2021-04-09
Permit
No.

Owner

Agent

Address

Proposed Works

Complete
Application
Date

Permit
Issued
Date

Ward
No.

39 Credit Road
Part Lot 31, Concession 3 WHS

Development in the floodplain of
the Credit River for the purpose of
reconstructing a dwelling with a
second story addition, rear
covered patio, three car attached
garage, driveway and septic
system.

2021-02-10

2021-03-15

2

16 Ingleview Drive
Part Lot 1, Concession 1 WHS

Development in the Regulated
Area for the purpose of
constructing a septic system.

N/A

2021-03-05

1

Part Lot 18, Concession 2 WHS

Development in the Regulated
Area to facilitate installation of
new gas main.

2021-02-16

2021-03-23

1

14513 Winston Churchill Boulevard
Part Lot 30, Concession 6 WHS

Development in the Regulated
Area for the purpose of
constructing a deck.

2021-02-18

2021-03-30

2

Caledon
Archaus
Architects
Inc.

20/050

20/315
revised
21/018

Enbridge Gas
Inc.

21/028

21/043

Enbridge Gas
Inc.

222 King Street
Part Lot 27, Concession 6 WHS

Development in the Regulated
Area for the purpose of installing a
gas service line to the dwelling.

2021-02-19

2021-03-29

2

21/045

2175120
Ontario Inc.

251 Dominion Street
Part Lot 10, Concession 4 WHS

Development in the Regulated
Area for the purpose of
constructing a second story
addition and a septic system.

2021-03-05

2021-03-05

1

231027 County Road 24
Part Lot 1, Concession 15

Development in the Regulated
Area for the purpose of
constructing a new dwelling,
driveway and septic system.

2021-02-25

2021-03-17

N/A

Eighth Line, North of 17 Sideroad
Part Lot 18, Concession 8

Development in the Regulated
Area for the purpose of replacing a
bridge, retaining walls, associated
grading and site restoration.

2020-04-23

2021-03-04

N/A

East Garafraxa
21/065

Erin

20/086

RJ Burnside &
Town of Erin
Associates
Ltd.
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DEVELOPMENT, INTERFERENCE WITH WETLANDS, AND ALTERATIONS TO SHORELINES
Schedule 'A'
WATERCOURSES APPLICATIONS (STAFF APPROVED, FOR BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ ENDORSEMENT) 2021-04-09
Agent

Address

Proposed Works

Complete
Application
Date

Permit
Issued
Date

Ward
No.

Clean-Clear
Pool Service
Ltd.

233 Acton Boulevard
Part Lot 29, Concession 3

Development in the Regulated
Area for the purpose of
constructing a 28' x 14' inground
pool and 3' surrounding patio.

2021-02-11

2021-03-04

1

20/321
revised

Terra Firma
Retaining
Walls Inc.

1562 Pinetree Way
Part Lot 5, Range 2 CIR

Development in the Regulated
Area for the purpose of
constructing retaining walls (all
walls).

N/A

2021-03-23

1

21/054

SMPL Design
Studio

1447 Myron Drive
Part Lot 7, Concession 2 SDS

Development in a Regulated Area
to facilitate construction of a pool
and site grading.

2021-03-02

2021-03-02

1

21/061

Jameson
Pools

7327 Waldorf Way
Part Lot 12, Concession 3 SDS

Development in a Regulated Area
to facilitate construction of a pool
and patio.

2021-03-11

2021-03-11

11

21/064

G.S.
Engineering
Services
Kitchener

5162 Timber Mill Court
Part Lot 1, Concession 3 WHS

2021-03-26

2021-03-26

6

21/068

Gren Weis
Architect

1355 Gatehouse Drive
Part Lot 25, Concession 3 SDS

2021-03-23

2021-03-23

2

21/070

Burl-Oak
Landscaping

1302 Bramblewood Lane
Part Lot 25, Concession 2 SDS

2021-03-23

2021-03-26

2

Permit
No.

Owner

Halton Hills

21/038

Mississauga

Development in a Regulated Area
to facilitate construction of a
below-grade entry for a second
unit.
Development in the Regulated
Area to facilitate construction of a
rear wood deck and front covered
porch.
Development in the Regulated
Area for the purpose of
constructing a 16' x 32' inground
pool and patio.
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SCHEDULE ‘B’
PAGE -12021-04-09

TO:

The Chair and Members
of the Board of Directors,
Credit Valley Conservation

SUBJECT:

APPROVAL OF DRAFT 2020 YEAR END AUDITED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PURPOSE:

To seek approval of the Board of Directors of CVC for the draft
CVC audited financial statements for the year ending
December 31, 2020

SUMMARY:
The draft financial statements of Credit Valley Conservation Authority for the year ending
December 31, 2020 are attached as Schedule ‘B’, Appendix 1. As required under
Canadian audit standards, the statements are presented in draft format until officially
approved by the Board. The external auditors have expressed their opinion as follows:
“In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Entity as at December 31, 2020, and its
results of operations, its changes in net financial debt and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.”
Using the framework prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB), CVC’s
financial position increased by $3.192 million dollars in 2020 (referred to as “Annual
Surplus” in the “Statement of Operations and Changes in Accumulated Surplus”). This
increase includes changes to both financial and non-financial assets such as tangible
capital assets. The largest drivers of the annual surplus are related to non-financial assets,
with the most notable item being the land purchase made with funds donated through the
Capstone Property campaign and with additional contributions from the Region of Peel.
Other large surplus drivers include investments in infrastructure assets like the Island Lake
South Dam Rehabilitation Project and the construction of the picnic pavilions and the
natural playground at Island Lake.

COMMUNICATIONS PLAN:
The financial statements will be available on the CVC website and provided upon request
to all interested parties.

SCHEDULE ‘B’
PAGE -22021-04-09
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
Costs associated with the 2020 audited financial statements are included in the operating
budget for the Corporate Services Department.
RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION:
RESOLVED THAT the report entitled “Draft 2020 Year End Audited Financial Statements”
including the “2020 Financial Statements” audited by KPMG be received and appended
to the minutes of this meeting as Schedule ‘B’; and
THAT the board approves the audited statements and authorizes the Chair and Vice Chair
to sign the Final 2020 Year End Audited Financial Statements; and further
THAT Final 2020 Year End Audited Financial Statements be provided to the members of
the Board for the May 14, 2021 Board meeting.
Submitted by:

__________________________
Roger Tharakan
Sr. Manager, Financial Services
Recommended by:

__________________________
Deborah Martin-Downs
Chief Administrative Officer

__________________________
Jeff Payne
Director, Corporate Services

SCHEDULE 'B', APPENDIX 1
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DRAFT #4
March 29, 2021

Financial Statements of

CREDIT VALLEY
CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
And Independent Auditors' Report thereon
Year ended December 31, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Members of Credit Valley Conservation Authority

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Credit Valley Conservation Authority
(the Entity), which comprise:
the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2020
the statement of operations and changes in accumulated surplus for the year then
ended
the statement of changes in net financial assets (debt) for the year then ended
the statement of cash flows for the year then ended
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies
(Hereinafter referred to as the "financial statements").
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Entity as at December 31, 2020, and its results
of operations, its changes in net financial debt and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
"Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements" section of
our auditors' report.
We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Responsibilities of Management and
Governance for the Financial Statements

Those

Charged

with

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Entity's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Entity or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Entity's financial
reporting process.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit.
We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity's internal
control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Entity's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Entity to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

DRAFT
Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants
Vaughan, Canada
____________________

SCHEDULE 'B', APPENDIX 1
PAGE 5
2021-04-09

CREDIT VALLEY CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
DRAFT Statement of Financial Position
December 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019
2020

2019

$ 14,655,222

$ 13,812,984

784,588
42,171
1,107,549
16,589,530

775,157
57,120
632,376
15,277,637

1,994,745
8,802,623
155,630
5,553,592
16,506,590

1,761,108
8,596,669
317,390
5,695,056
16,370,223

Financial assets
Cash and short-term investments (note 3)
Accounts receivable:
Government grants
Municipal levies
Other

Financial liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue (note 4)
Capital lease liabilities (note 6)
Mortgage payable (note 7)

Net financial assets (debt)

82,940

(1,092,586)

Non-financial assets
Tangible capital assets (note 5)
Prepaid expenses
Inventory

49,262,112
193,674
158,502
49,614,288

47,078,217
369,990
149,889
47,598,096

$ 49,697,228

$ 46,505,510

Commitments (note 11)
Contractual rights (note 13)
Accumulated surplus (note 10)
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
On behalf of the Board:
Chair
Vice-Chair
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CREDIT VALLEY CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
DRAFT Statement of Operations and Changes in Accumulated Surplus
Year ended December 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019
2020
Budget
(note 2)
Revenue:
Government grants:
Transfer payments
Federal/provincial

$

95,606
776,590
872,196

Municipal levies:
General (Schedule A)
Special benefiting (Schedule A)

$

95,606
1,161,038
1,256,644

2019
Actual

$

118,003
1,678,090
1,796,093

9,675,559
16,563,554
26,239,113

9,675,559
15,761,929
25,437,488

9,357,433
15,409,614
24,767,047

508,166

1,954,723

760,157

3,818,572
31,438,047

3,633,061
32,281,916

4,298,261
31,621,558

7,612,270

7,643,533

8,127,732

11,783,425

9,939,999

10,692,451

4,404,053

3,223,705

3,212,997

2,411,999

2,057,798

2,277,184

2,320,731

1,976,171

2,441,898

3,359,113
(595,008)

3,295,837
953,155

2,998,610
741,238

31,438,047

29,090,198

30,492,110

46,505,510

46,505,510

45,376,062

$ 46,505,510

$ 49,697,228

$ 46,505,510

Other contributions
Authority-generated (Schedule B)
Expenses:
Water Resources Management and
Restoration (Schedule C)
Watershed Stewardship and Natural
Heritage (Schedule D)
Conservation Lands Management
(Schedule E)
Conservation Areas Programming
(Schedule F)
Corporate Communications and Education
(Schedule G)
Environmental Advisory Services
(Schedule H)
Corporate Services (Schedule I)

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year
Accumulated surplus, end of year

2020
Actual

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CREDIT VALLEY CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
DRAFT Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets (Debt)
Year ended December 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019
2020
Annual surplus

$

Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Amortization
Loss (gain) on sale or disposal of tangible
capital assets
Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets
Acquisition of inventories of supplies
Acquisition of prepaid expenses
Consumption of inventories
Use of prepaid expenses

Decrease in net financial debt

3,191,718

$

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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1,129,448
(1,304,252)
1,142,439

(62,247)
76,308
(2,183,895)

3,382
2,442
(155,989)

(181,760)
(394,757)
173,147
571,073
167,703

(182,309)
(496,853)
185,678
310,143
(183,341)

(1,092,586)

Net financial assets (debt), end of year

$

(3,632,697)
1,434,741

1,175,526

Net financial debt, beginning of year

2019

82,940

790,118
(1,882,704)
$ (1,092,586)
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CREDIT VALLEY CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
DRAFT Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended December 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019
2020

2019

Cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities:
Annual surplus
Items not involving cash:
Amortization
Loss (gain) on sale or disposal of tangible capital assets
Change in non-cash operating items:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Inventory
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue

$

Capital activities:
Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets
Cash used to acquire tangible capital assets
Financing activities:
Capital lease repayment
Repayment of mortgage principal

Increase in cash and short-term investments

3,191,718

$

1,129,448

1,434,741
(62,247)

1,142,439
3,382

(469,655)
176,316
(8,613)
233,637
205,954
4,701,851

98,518
(186,710)
3,369
(249,536)
1,588,705
3,529,615

76,308
(3,632,697)
(3,556,389)

2,442
(971,123)
(968,681)

(161,760)
(141,464)
(303,224)

(171,750)
(134,316)
(306,066)

842,238

2,254,868

13,812,984

11,558,116

Cash and short-term investments, end of year

$ 14,655,222

$ 13,812,984

Supplemental cash flow information:
Interest received
Interest paid

$

$

Cash and short-term investments, beginning of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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117,471
292,576

189,142
304,573
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CREDIT VALLEY CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
DRAFT Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2020

The Credit Valley Conservation Authority (the ''Authority'') was established on May 13, 1954 by
Order-In-Council No. 1324/54, in accordance with Section 3(1) of the Conservation Authorities Act of
Ontario. The Authority is classified as a registered charity under the Income Tax Act (Canada) and,
as such, is not subject to income taxes provided certain disbursement requirements are met. The
objective of the Authority, as stated by the Conservation Authorities Act R.S.O. 1980 is, "to establish
and undertake, in the area over which it has jurisdiction, a program designed to further the
conservation, restoration, development and management of natural resources, other than gas, oil,
coal and minerals."
1.

Significant accounting policies:
These financial statements are prepared by management in accordance with accounting
principles for organizations operating in the local government sector as recommended by the
Public Sector Accounting Board ("PSAB") of the Chartered Professional Accountants of
Canada. Significant aspects of the accounting policies adopted by the Authority are as follows:
(a) Accrual basis of accounting:
Revenue and expenses are recorded on the accrual basis, whereby they are reflected in
the accounts in the year in which they have been earned and incurred, respectively,
whether or not such transactions have been settled by the receipt or payment of money.
(b) Payroll allocation:
Payroll costs of the Authority are allocated over the various projects and programs in which
the Authority is involved.
(c) Cash and short-term investments:
Cash and short-term investments comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term
cashable investments. Short-term investments are highly liquid, subject to insignificant risk
of changes in value.
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CREDIT VALLEY CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
DRAFT Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended December 31, 2020

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued):
(d) Non-financial assets:
Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in
the provision of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and
are not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations.
(i) Tangible capital assets:
Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost, which includes all amounts that are
directly attributable to acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset.
The cost, less residual value, of the tangible capital assets is amortized on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Land improvements
Structures
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Equipment under capital lease

10 - 25 years
10 - 75 years
1 - 25 years
4 - 9 years
Over the term of the lease

Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is available for productive
use, at which time, they are capitalized.
(ii) Contributed tangible capital assets:
Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded at their fair value at the
date of receipt.
(e) Vehicles and equipment:
The Authority maintains a reserve for replacement of vehicles and equipment. Internal
charges for the use of the vehicles and equipment are made to the various projects and
programs of the Authority. The internal charges are designed to recover the costs of
operating the equipment, including replacement. Additions and replacements to vehicles
and equipment are financed by transfers from this reserve.
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CREDIT VALLEY CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
DRAFT Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended December 31, 2020

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued):
(f) Revenue and deferred revenue:
Government transfer payments and municipal levies are recognized in the financial
statements in the year in which the transfer is authorized and all eligibility criteria have
been met, except when a transfer gives rise to a liability.
Other grants, other contributions and authority-generated revenue are recognized when the
related services are performed.
(g) Use of estimates:
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

2.

Budget figures:
The organization follows budget presentation based on expected cash inflows and outflows,
and the budget is prepared on a cash basis. Accrued base items such as amortization
expense are not budgeted for.
The budget figures have been derived from the budget approved by the Board of Directors on
February 14, 2020.
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CREDIT VALLEY CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
DRAFT Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended December 31, 2020

3.

Cash and short-term investments:
As at year end, The Authority held $10,037,588 of cash in the ONE Investment High Interest
Savings account (2019 - $3,000,000 of cash held in the ONE Investment High Interest Savings
account, and $2,998,996 in short-term securities, cashable at any time, upon written request).

4.

Deferred revenue:
Revenue received but not earned at year end is as follows:
2020
MNR transfer payment
Water Management Technical Assessment and Guidance
LID Developer Funded Monitoring Program
Water Management Transfer Tools and Training
Blocks 1 to 5 EIR & FSR
Flood Forecast & Warning
Climate Change Vulnerability Assessment
Real Time Water Quality Response
SWM Infrastructure Performance Risk Assess
Floodline Mapping Program - Peel
Leaders for Clean Water - Peel
Leaders for Clean Water - Headwaters
Peel Predevelopment Support
Peel Planting Program
50 Million Trees Program - Future Obligation
Future Replanting - CVC Partners
Invasive Species Control Program
Grassland Projects
Peel Rural Water Quality
Peel Rural Stewardship
Sustainable Neighbourhoods
Peel Ecological Goods and Services
Watershed Ecological Goods & Services
Conservation Youth Corp
Nursery Infrastructure & Restoration
Aquatic & Wetland Restoration - Peel
Regional Community Outreach
Headwaters Outreach
Urban Outreach & Restoration
Jim Tovey Lakeview Conserva
Jim Tovey Lakeview Conservation Area: Phase II

8

$

17,449
422,343
133,025
222,292
25,410
56,018
66,747
134,231
456,260
230,047
422,900
230,160

2019
$

23,902
397,451
131,776
114,643
25,064
62,930
109,563
185,768
351,754
158,471
232,861
18,101

69,330
328,252
16,258
15,019
173,995
17,165
116,878
158,919
37,016
91,993
119,457
82,671
47,309
862,694

92,786
47,497
16,253
15,558
103,406
20,017
92,782
96,997
33,987
104,973
121,519
41,986
4,708
677,794

6,316
81,467
57,212

90,341
49,778
50,179

13,309

8,327
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CREDIT VALLEY CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
DRAFT Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended December 31, 2020

4.

Deferred revenue (continued):

Landscape Science
Urban Natural Heritage
Natural Areas Inventory
Wildlife Habitat Assessment
Effectiveness Monitoring Strategy
Brampton Cause and Effect Monitoring
Infrastructure Major Maintenance
Dods & McNair Memorial Forest
Capital Projects - Peel
Enforcement Program - Peel
Public Relations
Corporate Support Initiatives
Environmental Education
Conservation Authorities University
Green Infrastructure Ontario Coalition Administration

2020

2019

84,471
118,342
162,643
113,906
42,740
264,822

73,721
138,586
102,956
146,600
23,845
261,212

504,971
3,547
1,841,695
24,458

1,371,944
9,027
1,197,164
558

159,835
402,792
227,023
94,276
276

148,221
361,256
171,162
93,933
29,250

$ 8,802,623

$ 8,596,669

These amounts are recognized as revenue as directly related expenses are incurred.
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CREDIT VALLEY CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
DRAFT Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended December 31, 2020

5.

Tangible capital assets:
2020 tangible capital assets cost:

Land improvements

Balance,
December 31,
2019

Additions

Transfers
in (out)

3,869,285

38,305

466,794

Disposals

Balance,
December 31,
2020

(56,413)

4,317,971

Machinery and

2020 accumulated amortization:
Balance,
December 31,
2019
Land improvements
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles

$

2,166,025

Additions
$

1,972,385
263,321
$ 11,082,895

181,088

Disposals
$

510,772
222,270
$

1,434,741

(56,413)

Balance,
December 31,
2020
$

(350,343)
(69,056)
$

(475,812)

2,132,814
416,535
$

2020
Net book
value
Land
Land improvements
Structures
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Assets under construction

2,290,700

12,041,824

2019
Net book
value

$

33,347,745
2,027,271
11,212,839
1,946,323
526,519
201,415

$

32,050,548
1,703,260
10,429,720
2,116,854
501,151
276,684

$

49,262,112

$

47,078,217

Included in machinery and equipment are capital leases for computer server and
network/firewall hardware with a cost of $519,985 (2019 - $519,985) and accumulated
amortization of $218,352 (2019 - $97,698).
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CREDIT VALLEY CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
DRAFT Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended December 31, 2020

6.

Capital lease liabilities:
The Authority has three (2019 - three) leases for hardware, which have been capitalized
(note 5). The terms of the leases are for 36 months with $1 purchase options at the end of the
lease terms. The interest rates range from 0% to 3%. Interest expense for the year is $2,760
(2019 - $4,853). Aggregate future repayment of the leases are as follows:

7.

Total minimum lease payments in 2021
Less amount representing interest

$ 156,608
978

Present value of net minimum capital lease payments

$ 155,630

Mortgage payable:
In 2010, the Authority entered into a long-term financing agreement with the Regional
Municipality of Peel for a maximum of $6,590,000 to use for the development and construction
of the Authority's headquarters building expansion. During 2011, the promissory note was
converted to a mortgage payable and bears interest at a rate of 5.196% and is repayable over
30 years. The current portion of principal is $148,992 (2019 - $141,464).
Expected principal payments for the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Thereafter

$

148,992
156,920
165,271
174,066
183,329
4,725,014

$ 5,553,592

8.

Line of credit:
The Authority has a standby line of credit with the Bank of Nova Scotia at prime plus 0%
interest. As at December 31, 2020, no amount has been drawn.
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CREDIT VALLEY CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
DRAFT Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended December 31, 2020

9.

Related party transactions:
During the year, the Authority received $764,934 (2019 - $1,775,987) from the Credit Valley
Conservation Foundation, of which $325,324 (2019 - $1,036,037) was recognized as revenue
in the current year. The balance of funds received of $439,610 (2019 - $739,950) has been
deferred until the appropriate recognition criteria have been met.

10.

Accumulated surplus:
Accumulated surplus consists of the following:
2020
Invested in tangible capital assets
Operating fund
Reserves

11.

2019

$

49,262,112
(13,264,446)
13,699,562

$

47,078,217
(12,180,637)
11,607,930

$

49,697,228

$

46,505,510

Lease commitments:
Future minimum lease payments for the next five years for equipment are approximately as
follows:

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025

$ 16,206
16,160
15,664
15,664
1,305
$ 64,999
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CREDIT VALLEY CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
DRAFT Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended December 31, 2020

12.

Pension agreements:
The Authority makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement System
("OMERS"), which is a multi-employer plan, on behalf of full-time members of staff and eligible
part-time staff. The plan is a defined benefit plan, which specifies the amount of the retirement
benefit to be received by the employees based on the length of service and rate of pay.
Contributions made by the Authority to OMERS for 2020 were $1,664,957 (2019 - $1,588,374).

13.

Contractual rights:
The Authority is involved in various contracts and agreements arising in the ordinary course of
business. This results in contractual rights to economic resources, leading to both assets and
revenue in the future. Future revenues from third party contracts to provide services and
shared services with cost recoveries are estimated to be approximately $5,619,000 (2019 $6,495,000) over the course of 2021 to 2025.

14.

Segmented information:
Certain allocation methodologies are employed in the preparation of segmented financial
information. Government grants, user charges, transfers from other funds, and other revenue
are allocated to the specific program or service they relate to. Expense allocations are both
internal and external. Activity-based costing is used to allocate internal support costs to
departments. These costs include the net expenditures for departments, such as human
resources, information systems, finance and others, commonly referred to as overhead.
The Authority segments its activities into seven main program areas which are reported in the
accompanying supplementary schedules to the financial statements.
Water Resources Management and Restoration
Services provided by the Authority include those required to develop the framework and
management strategy to provide a rational approach to natural systems protection, restoration
and use. The Authority also maintains and updates an extensive database of information on
the watershed. The Authority undertakes studies of specific areas, such as subwatersheds, or
features, such as groundwater to improve the watershed knowledge and determine methods to
improve management techniques. The information gathered is also used to assess the health
of the watershed, to anticipate impacts of future changes, to determine methods of maintaining
and restoring a healthy river system, and to monitor the effectiveness of actions.
13
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CREDIT VALLEY CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
DRAFT Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended December 31, 2020

14.

Segmented information (continued):
Watershed Stewardship and Natural Heritage
The Authority coordinates stewardship information and provides service, technical advice and
assistance to private, public and corporate landowners, community groups and individual
residents on sound environmental practices that will enhance, restore or protect lands and
natural features. This segment includes activities, such as forest management, naturalization,
stream, pond and wetland management, wildlife management, water quality problems, flooding
and erosion problems and agricultural matters. The Authority undertakes this role in
partnership with the municipalities, provincial agencies, interest groups and academic institutes.
The Natural Heritage activity includes the inventory, research and analysis and monitoring of
natural vegetation communities at both the landscape level and the community level. Plant,
animal and fish species are also recorded to manage significant species and habitats as per
Provincial Policy Statements, Subwatershed Studies and the Authority's Planning policies.
Technical advice is provided to internal activities, as well as other agencies and stakeholders.
Conservation Lands Management
Services include facilitating the development and ongoing management of a conservation land
strategy for public lands. Conservation lands form an interconnected network of natural areas
and natural corridors that help protect the long-term health of the watershed. Activities include
comprehensive inventories of all public conservation lands, identification of key gaps in public
ownership and opportunities for closing these gaps and the development of routes for trails. It
also includes management, planning, monitoring, general maintenance and general upkeep of
land, improvements, structures, machinery and equipment owned or managed by the Authority.
Conservation Areas Programming
Services include recreational program delivery at Belfountain, Island Lake, Ken Whillans and
Terra Cotta Conservation Areas. The programs are designed to offer sustainable natural
heritage appreciation and recreational benefits for the general public. The programs include
trails for walking, picnicking, boating, fishing, cross country skiing and special events.
Corporate Communications and Education
Services include corporate communications, marketing, information technology services and
the operation of the Credit Valley Conservation Foundation. It also includes the development
and implementation of a corporate education strategy that focuses on watershed priorities.
14
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CREDIT VALLEY CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
DRAFT Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended December 31, 2020

14.

Segmented information (continued):
Environmental Advisory Services
The Authority provides environmental review of land use proposals submitted by municipalities,
developers and the general public. This includes official plan review, secondary plan review,
general planning studies, review of plans of subdivision and condominiums, office plan
amendments, land division review, site plans and zoning bylaws and variances. The Authority
also administers approvals for construction and filling in flood plains and valleys and for altering
the course of rivers and streams. The Authority's objective in providing these services is to
ensure protection of water quantity and quality, natural heritage, protection of people from
natural hazards, such as flooding and erosion, and to ensure the interests and rights of those
downstream are not compromised as stipulated by the Planning Act, the Conservation
Authorities Act and the Environmental Assessment Act.
Corporate Services
Services include both management and non-program specific activities. These include internal
support services, such as senior management costs, board costs, office support services,
financial services and human resources and are charged to other programs on a pro rata basis.

15.

Financial risk:
Market risk:
During the year, the COVID-19 outbreak was declared a pandemic by the World Health
Organization. This has resulted in governments worldwide, including the Canadian and Ontario
governments, enacting emergency measures to combat the spread of the virus. These
measures, which include the implementation of travel bans, self-imposed quarantine periods
and social distancing, have caused material disruption to businesses globally and in Canada,
resulting in an economic slowdown.
During the year, the Authority has experienced a reduction in revenue due to site closures. The
Authority has closed administrative buildings and public lands (conservation parks,
conversation areas and trails) in accordance with the guidance from public health organizations
throughout the year. The Authority has also mandated work-from-home supported by
technology and infrastructure to access servers from remote locations, for those who were able
to do so. Management continues to closely monitor and manage the impact of COVID-19 to the
operations of the Authority.
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CREDIT VALLEY CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
DRAFT Schedule A - Municipal Levies
Year ended December 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019
2020
General
levy

Member municipality
Region of Halton
Town of Halton Hills
Town of Oakville
Region of Peel
City of Brampton
City of Mississauga
Town of Caledon
Town of Orangeville
Township of:
Amaranth
East Garafraxa
Town of Mono
Town of Erin

$

489,831

2019
Special
levy

$

319,652

General
levy
$

465,055

Special
levy
$

306,006

8,875,580

15,352,220

8,587,944

15,042,378

232,968

67,647

228,649

45,988

1,070
5,463
10,895
59,752

311
1,586
3,163
17,350

1,029
5,315
10,555
58,886

207
1,069
2,123
11,843

$ 9,675,559

$ 15,761,929

$ 9,357,433

$ 15,409,614
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CREDIT VALLEY CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
DRAFT Schedule B - Authority-Generated Revenue
Year ended December 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019
2020
Budget
(note 2)

2020
Actual

2019
Actual

84,715
84,715

62,258
166,266

46,959
109,559

446,056
228,500
340,620
1,015,176

259,615
237,504
122,361
619,480

250,814
338,125
378,441
967,380

15,930
15,930

7,371
559,112

10,547
190,846

1,273,763

902,199

1,497,445

196,488
1,470,251

85,464
988,963

157,657
1,661,813

256,000
46,000
302,000

124,516
8,387
132,903

212,029
60,702
272,731

43,000

34,779

57,279

110,000
610,000
763,500

206,561
664,547
905,887

131,050
590,001
778,330

130,000
37,000
167,000

184,542
75,908
260,450

189,142
128,460
317,602

$ 3,818,572

$ 3,633,061

$ 4,298,261

Programs
Water Resource Management and Restoration:
Other Income
Watershed Stewardship and Natural Heritage:
Erosion control fees
Donations
Other Income
Conservation Lands Management:
Other Income
Conservation Areas Programming:
Conservation Area Program Fees
Merchandise and Other Income
Corporate Communications and Education:
Donations
Other Income
Environmental Advisory Services:
GD Inquiry Fees
Regulation Fees
Plan Review Fees
Corporate Services:
Interest and Other Income
Miscellaneous
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CREDIT VALLEY CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
DRAFT Schedule C - Water Resources Management and Restoration Expenses
Year ended December 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019
2020
Budget
(note 2)
Watershed Management
G.I.S.
Professional Services
Flood Warning
Water Quality Strategy
Flood Line Mapping
Groundwater Management
Watershed and Subwatershed Planning
River Infrastructure Management

$

Watershed Studies and Projects:
Water Management Technical Assess
and Guidance
LID Developer Funded Monitoring Program
Water Management Knowledge Transfer
Tools and Training
Source Protection

211,120
880,206
30,500
240,514
120,347
106,085
219,600
189,271
417,598
2,415,241

2020
Actual
$

194,357
960,710
7,488
200,404
119,950
185,376
193,605
185,223
354,720
2,401,833

2019
Actual
$

252,982
727,752
10,909
176,383
108,527
83,608
161,542
192,015
422,560
2,136,278

875,502
8,852

994,401
5,669

1,001,438
622

345,097
84,458

347,360
110,352

553,648
39,807

512,577
234,514
395,694
1,126,978
610,643
846,138
156,576
5,197,029

479,489
202,330
401,072
985,613
616,379
954,518
144,517
5,241,700

433,237
170,217
414,949
1,005,514
1,091,922
1,123,596
148,442
5,991,454

$ 7,612,270

$ 7,643,533

$ 8,127,732

Flood Forecasting & Warning
Climate Change Vulnerability Assessment
Real Time Water Quality Response
SWM Infrastructure Perf. Risk Assess
Floodline Mapping Program - Peel
Leaders for Clean Water - Peel
Leaders for Clean Water - Headwaters
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CREDIT VALLEY CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
DRAFT Schedule D - Watershed Stewardship and Natural Heritage Expenses
Year ended December 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019
2020
Budget
(note 2)
Watershed Stewardship:
Stewardship Administration
Aquatic & Wetland Restoration-Watershed
Planting Program
Peel Planting Program
Nursery Operations
Invasive Species Control Program
Emerald Ash Borer-Halton
Stewardship Outreach

$

Peel Rural Water Quality Program
Peel Rural Stewardship
Sustainable Neighbourhoods
Peel Ecological Goods and Services
Watershed Ecological Goods and Services
Conservation Youth Corp
Nursery Infrastructure & Restoration
Aquatic & Wetland Restoration-Peel
Credit Valley Trail
Regional Community Outreach
Headwaters Outreach
Urban Outreach & Restoration
Jim Tovey Lakeview Conservation Area Jim Tovey Lakeview Conservation Area Phase II
Natural Heritage:
Ecosystem Science
Integrated Water Monitoring
Landscape Science
Urban Natural Heritage
Natural Areas Inventory
Wildlife Habitat Assessment
Effectiveness Monitoring
Natural Heritage Administration

387,246
145,358
346,590
792,090
414,566
702,464
216,000
347,800

$

205,978
106,821
326,013
408,261
187,817
615,288
177,420
299,166

2019
Actual

$

222,175
67,711
279,032
682,755
397,364
729,587
212,470
277,562

179,061
727,053
131,978
263,484
140,586
517,805
112,509
971,452
124,032
355,194
146,758
626,139

144,965
584,044
92,448
267,241
91,230
355,290
31,604
786,552
101,885
320,122
120,914
613,127

160,262
585,581
105,005
231,427
109,983
497,032
55,380
837,008
180,594
355,299
119,075
620,591

1,872
7,650,037

627,918
6,467,310

253,675
6,986,299

907,460
1,030,244
578,044
270,068
467,902
415,783
185,877
278,010
4,133,388

736,977
821,211
567,294
199,741
408,215
324,209
166,983
248,059
3,472,689

788,952
949,315
550,253
191,090
453,980
346,016
183,143
243,403
3,706,152

9,939,999

$ 10,692,451

$ 11,783,425
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CREDIT VALLEY CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
DRAFT Schedule E - Conservation Lands Management Expenses
Year ended December 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019
2020
Budget
(note 2)
Land Management Administration

$

Enforcement Program
Property Management
Corporate Offices Support
Dam Maintenance

717,545

2020
Actual
$

698,005

2019
Actual
$

684,524

33,777
542,265
677,257
32,192

30,261
459,893
712,727
28,268

29,551
469,981
649,548
29,521

2,003,036

1,634,502

1,596,623

656,597
242,617

440,803
56,968

433,769
64,480

1,369,371
132,432
2,401,017

977,420
108,533
1,589,203

525,034
133,244
1,616,374

$ 4,404,053

$ 3,223,705

$ 3,212,997

Capital/Development Projects:
Infrastructure Major Maintenance CA's
Infrastructure/Major Maintenance - Dams
Capital Projects - Peel
Enforcement Project - Peel

20
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CREDIT VALLEY CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
DRAFT Schedule F - Conservation Areas Programming Expenses
Year ended December 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019
2020
Budget
(note 2)
Belfountain
Island Lake
Ken Whillans RMA
Terra Cotta
Badlands
Conservation Areas - Memberships

$

339,610
979,989
267,730
717,430
97,968
9,272

$ 2,411,999

21

2020
Actual
$

206,101
880,157
259,126
652,753
51,779
7,882

$ 2,057,798

2019
Actual
$

286,011
968,297
260,566
661,136
94,570
6,604

$ 2,277,184
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CREDIT VALLEY CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
DRAFT Schedule G - Corporate Communications and Education Expenses
Year ended December 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019
2020
Budget
(note 2)
Information Technology
Corporate Communications
Foundation Administration
Public Relations
Corporate Support Initiatives
Community Education
Environmental Education

$

(522,966)
511,119
408,840
480,487
491,850
197,029
754,372

$ 2,320,731

22

2020
Actual
$

(577,636)
498,287
292,875
468,930
522,433
177,692
592,683

$ 1,976,171

2019
Actual
$

(140,409)
473,510
326,442
404,957
542,040
158,025
663,980

$ 2,441,898
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CREDIT VALLEY CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
DRAFT Schedule H - Environmental Advisory Services Expenses
Year ended December 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019
2020
Budget
(note 2)
Plan Input
Plan Review
Environmental Approvals
Peel Predevelopment Support
EA Review

$

836,510
1,291,980
285,845
529,903
414,875

$ 3,359,113

23

2020
Actual
$

776,274
1,349,216
302,116
473,360
394,871

$ 3,295,837

2019
Actual
$

663,515
1,226,952
294,915
430,883
382,345

$ 2,998,610
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CREDIT VALLEY CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
DRAFT Schedule I - Corporate Services Expenses
Year ended December 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019
2020
Budget
(note 2)
Corporate Management
Staff Allocations to Special Projects
Overhead Allocations to Special Projects

$

1,080,610
(196,372)
(3,357,029)

2020
Actual
$

1,153,775
(84,384)
(3,349,989)

2019
Actual
$

1,044,131
(56,756)
(3,220,339)

Interest Expense

292,578

296,536

304,573

Office Support Services
Financial Services
Human Resources
Green Infrastructure Ontario

153,695
677,276
754,234

62,423
723,972
671,427

104,845
662,801
678,616

$

24

(595,008)

$

953,155

$

741,238
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CREDIT VALLEY CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
DRAFT Schedule J - Continuity of Accumulated Surplus
Year ended December 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019

2020
Gauge Reserve
Facility Reserve
Parks Revenue Reserve
Conservation Areas Reserve
Credit Valley Trail
Capital Reserve

Balance,
December 31,
2019

Appropriation
(to) from
operations

Balance,
December 31,
2020

$

$

$

417,500
160,000
35,000
95,841
2,736
9,563,211

23,032
(35,200)
6,600
13,400
140,000
1,434,741

440,532
124,800
41,600
109,241
142,736
10,997,952

Vehicle Reserve
Equipment Reserve

630,245
611,100

(24,214)
35,714

606,031
646,814

Computer
Peel Restoration Re

46,828

134,968

181,796

11,607,930

2,091,632

13,699,562

(12,180,637)

(1,083,809)

(13,264,446)

15,729,645

2,183,895

17,913,540

$ 46,505,510

$ 3,191,718

$ 49,697,228

Balance,
December 31,
2018

Appropriation
(to) from
operations

Balance,
December 31,
2019

$

$

$

Operating Fund
Post 2008 PSAB 3150

2019
Gauge Reserve
Facility Reserve
Parks Revenue Reserve
Conservation Areas Reserve

300,000
150,000
25,000
75,841

Capital Reserve
Vehicle Reserve
Equipment Reserve
Land Acquisition/Management MNR
Computer
Operating Fund
Post 2008 PSAB 3150

117,500
10,000
10,000
20,000

417,500
160,000
35,000
95,841

8,420,772

1,142,439

9,563,211

441,644
551,112
36,770
223,807
10,235,742

188,601
59,988
639
(176,979)
1,372,188

630,245
611,100
37,409
46,828
11,607,930

(11,781,908)

(398,729)

(12,180,637)

15,573,656

155,989

15,729,645

$ 45,376,062

$ 1,129,448

$ 46,505,510

25
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TO:

The Chair and Members
of the Board of Directors,
Credit Valley Conservation

SUBJECT:

2020 KPMG AUDIT FINDINGS REPORT

PURPOSE:

To provide the Board of Directors of CVC with the KPMG Audit
Findings Report for the year ended December 31, 2020

SUMMARY:
The external auditor for Credit Valley Conservation Authority conducts an audit on an
annual basis in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. The audit work
has been completed for the 2020 year-end and KPMG has issued their Audit Findings
Report which is attached as Schedule ‘C’ Appendix 1. The stated purpose of the report by
KPMG is as follows:
“The purpose of this Audit Findings Report is to assist you, as a member of the
Board of Directors, in your review of the results of our audit of the financial
statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2020.”
The report sets out the audit plan and areas of emphasis, a statement of audit adjustments
and differences and provides additional supporting information for the Board of Directors.
KPMG did not identify any control deficiencies that they determined to be significant
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting (ICFR) and confirmed that the
presentation and disclosure of the financial statements are in accordance with Canadian
public sector accounting standards.

COMMUNICATIONS PLAN:
The 2020 KPMG Audit Findings Report will be provided to all interested parties upon
request and is publicly available on the CVC website as part of the Board agenda and
minutes.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
Costs associated with the 2020 KPMG Audit are included in the operating budget for the
Corporate Services Department.
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RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION:
RESOLVED THAT the report entitled “2020 KPMG Audit Findings Report” be received
and appended to the minutes of this meeting as Schedule ‘C’.
Submitted by:

__________________________
Roger Tharakan
Sr. Manager, Financial Services
Recommended by:

__________________________
Deborah Martin-Downs
Chief Administrative Officer

__________________________
Jeff Payne
Director, Corporate Services
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Executive summary
Purpose of this report1
The purpose of this Audit Findings Report is to assist you, as a member of the Board of Directors, in your review of the results of our audit of the financial
statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2020.
Finalizing the Audit
As of the date of circulation of this Audit Findings Report, we have completed the
audit of the financial statements, with the exception of certain remaining procedures,
which include amongst others:
–
–
–
–

Completing our discussions with the Board
Obtaining evidence of the Board’s approval of the financial statements.
Receipt of the signed management representation letter (dated upon Board
approval of the financial statements)
completion of subsequent events procedures, up to the date of approval of
the financial statements

We will update the Board of Directors, and not solely the Chair, on significant
matters, if any, arising from the completion of the audits, including the completion of
the above procedures. Our auditors’ reports will be dated upon the completion of any
remaining procedures.

Audit materiality
Materiality has been determined based on total revenue. We have determined the
materiality to be $870,000 (2019 - $910,000).
See page 7.

Audit risks and results
Our audit is risk-focused. In planning our audit we have taken into account key areas
of focus for financial reporting.
See pages 8-12.

Uncorrected differences
We did not identify differences that remain uncorrected.

COVID-19
Critical accounting estimates
COVID-19 has had an impact on the Entity’s operations and financial reporting. We
have discussed this impact and our audit response in our report.

We are satisfied with the reasonability of critical accounting estimates.

See pages 3-6.

1

This Audit Findings Report should not be used for any other purpose or by anyone other than the Board of Directors and Management of the Entity. KPMG shall have no responsibility or liability for

loss or damages or claims, if any, to or by any third party as this Audit Findings Report has not been prepared for, and is not intended for, and should not be used by, any third party or for any other
purpose.

SCHEDULE 'C', APPENDIX 1
PAGE 4
2021-04-09

Executive summary (continued)
Control deficiencies
We did not identify any control deficiencies that we determined to be significant
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting.

Financial statement presentation and disclosure
The presentation and disclosure of the financial statements are, in all material
respects, in accordance with the Authority’s relevant financial reporting framework,
Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Independence
We are independent with respect to the Authority within the meaning of the relevant
rules and related interpretations prescribed by the relevant professional bodies
in Canada and any other standards or applicable legislation or regulation.
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COVID-19: Embedding Resilience & Readiness
COVID-19 was declared a global pandemic by the World Health Entity in March 2020. In Canada, the federal and provincial governments have enacted
emergency measures to combat the spread of virus. The Entity has responded operationally to the COVID-19 crisis by organizing virtual events and by
transitioning to a work from home environment. In addition, the COVID-19 crisis has had immediate and significant negative impact on the Canadian and
global economies, which has a direct impact on the operations, finances, and risks of the Entity.
For some further insights, please refer to our COVID-19 Financial Reporting site.
Potential audit implications
Planning and risk assessment:
•
Understanding the expected impact on the relevant metrics for
determining materiality (including the benchmark) and the
implication of that in identifying the risks of material misstatement,
responding to such risks and evaluating uncorrected
misstatements.
•
Understanding the potential financial reporting impacts, the
changes in Entity’s environment, and changes in the Entity’s
system of internal control, and their impact on our;
o identified and assessed risks of material misstatement,
and,
o audit strategy and the nature, timing and extent of
substantive procedures.

Audit response
Planning and risk assessment:
•
We held planning meetings with key management personnel to understand the
impact on the relevant metrics for determining materiality (including the benchmark).
•
Based on discussions with management, and the risk assessment process
undertaken, we identified certain areas of financial reporting that were impacted by
COVID-19.
•
We have discussed the financial reporting implications as well as the audit response
of these implications in the various sections of this report, as applicable.
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COVID-19: Embedding Resilience & Readiness (continued)
Potential audit implications
Executing:
•
Remote auditing:
o Increased use of other collaboration tools- Teams
o Increased use of electronic evidence (and understanding
the Entity’s processes to provide such evidence to us).

Audit response
Execution:
Remote auditing:
•
We executed the audit virtually using the appropriate KPMG Technology tools for
the exchange of information with the management. We have discussed these tools
on page 13.
•
We held regular status meetings with key finance personnel to ensure that both
parties were kept fully apprised of the status of the audit and key issues were
discussed in a timely manner.
Timing of procedures:
•
The audit was conducted the week of February 15th as scheduled. We were able to
complete all necessary audit procedures within the scheduled time through the use
of a variety of technology tools. These technology tools enhanced productivity in the
virtual work environment.
•
We thank management for their cooperation and timely response during the audit
week.
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COVID-19: Embedding Resilience & Readiness (continued)
Potential financial reporting
implications
•

Completeness of liabilities

Audit response
Search for unrecorded liabilities:
•
We carried out detailed discussions with the management to understand their process for ensuring
completeness of liabilities including cut-off matters such as inability to receive services or the associated
paperwork (e.g. invoices) for processing.
•
We inquired of any temporary procedural changes due to the virtual work requirements as a result of the
pandemic.
•
We customized our audit procedures accordingly to ensure that we were able to obtain sufficient and
appropriate audit evidence.
No issues were noted.

•

COVID-19 related expenses – accuracy and
completeness of the non-recurring expenses
incurred to respond to the global pandemic

Non-recurring expenses due to COVID-19:
•
We inquired of management related to non-recurring COVID-19 expenses. We were informed that there
were no significant non-recurring expenses related to COVID-19 as the Entity was able to continue
operations through this period.
No issues were noted.
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COVID-19: Embedding Resilience & Readiness (continued)
Potential financial reporting implications

Audit response

•

Receipt of government subsidy:
•
We inquired about the government assistance received before and subsequent to the year-end and tested
these balances. No such subsidy was noted.

Government assistance to support/finance
cash flow during pandemic

No issues were noted.
•

•

Going concern – The auditing standards do
require that management undertake a going
concern assessment on an annual basis.
Under the current environment, it is
unfortunate that some Entities will be
financially struggling.
Management documented their going
concern assessment through the inquiries
process and through discussions with us.

•

We concur with management’s assessment that the Entity has met the requirements to be considered a
going concern.
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Materiality
Materiality is used to identify risks of material misstatements, develop an appropriate audit response to such risks, and evaluate the level at which we think
misstatements will reasonably influence users of the financial statements. It considers both quantitative and qualitative factors. To respond to aggregation risk,
we design our procedures to detect misstatements at a lower level of materiality.
Materiality determination

Comments

Amount

Materiality

Determined to plan and perform the audit and to evaluate the effects of identified misstatements on the audit and
of any uncorrected misstatements on the financial statements.

$870,000

The corresponding amount for the prior year’s audit was $910,000.
Benchmark

Based on actual expenses for the current year. This benchmark is consistent with the prior year.

$29,100,000

% of Benchmark

The corresponding percentage for the prior year’s audit was approximately 3 %.

3%

Performance materiality

Used 75% of materiality, and used primarily to determine the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures.

$652,500

The corresponding amount for the previous year’s audit was $682,500.
Audit Misstatement Posting
Threshold (AMPT)

.

Threshold used to accumulate misstatements identified during the audit.

$43,500

The corresponding amount for the previous year’s audit was $45,500.

We will report to the Board of Directors:
Corrected audit misstatements
Uncorrected audit misstatements
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Audit risks and results
We highlight our significant findings in respect of significant financial reporting risks, as well as any additional significant risks identified.
Significant financial reporting risk

Why is it significant?

Risk of material misstatement due to fraud resulting from fraudulent revenue
recognition.

This is a presumed risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

Risk of material misstatement due to fraud resulting from management override of
controls.

This is a presumed risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

Our response and significant findings
−

Fraud risk from revenue recognition has been rebutted. We have not identified any risk of material misstatement resulting from fraudulent revenue recognition.
Our audit methodology incorporates the required procedures in professional standards to address and rebut this risk. These procedures include substantive
revenue testing, testing of relevant journal entries and other adjustments and evaluating the business rationale of significant unusual transactions.

−

As this presumed risk of material misstatement due to fraud is not rebuttable, our audit methodology incorporates the required procedures in professional
standards to address this risk. These procedures include testing of journal entries and other adjustments, performing a retrospective review of estimates and
evaluating the business rationale of significant unusual transactions.

−

No issues were noted.
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Audit risks and results (continued)
Significant findings from the audit regarding other areas of focus are as follows:

Other area of focus

Why are we focusing here?

Cash

The bank account and high interest savings account changes impact the risk
of material misstatement related to the existence and accuracy of cash and
investment balances at year end.

short term investments

Our response and significant findings
−

Obtain confirmations of the year-end cash and investment balances from third parties.

−

Review of bank reconciliations and vouch significant reconciliation items to supporting documentation.

−

Review of new investment accounts opened during the year, ensuring appropriate classification, and review of disclosure requirements

−

Review financial statement disclosures

Findings: No issues were found.
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Audit risks and results (continued)
Other area of focus

Why are we focusing here?

Revenue, Deferred revenue and Accounts Receivable.

The Authority receives significant revenue, some of which are restricted
contributions. Restricted contributions are deferred until such time as they are
spent on funded projects. Risk of material misstatement arises from the
accuracy and timing of revenue recognition.

Our response and significant findings
−

Revenue recognition considerations (recognized vs. deferred)

−

Select a sample of restricted contributions, vouch to supporting documentation, and ensure appropriate deferrals were made

−

Reconciliation of accounts receivable and review sub-ledger for credit balances

−

Confirmation of levies revenue

−

Perform a trend analysis focused on significant year-over-year variances

−

Make inquires of management on the sources and forms of donation revenue for considerations relating to completeness of cash donations
Findings: No issues were found.
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Audit risks and results (continued)
Other area of focus

Why are we focusing here?

Tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets represent approximately 75% of total assets. This is a
material balance, consisting largely of land and structures, that represents the
core operations of the Authority. Risk of material misstatement is related to
the existence and accuracy of the tangible capital assets.

Our response and significant findings
−

Select a sample of additions and agree to original invoices to ensure proper accounting treatment

−

Review any significant disposals

−

Review of significant transfer items out of the work in progress account

−

Assess the reasonableness of amortization expense

Findings: No issues were found
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Audit risks and results (continued)
Other area of focus

Why are we focusing here?

Expenses, accounts payable, and accrued liabilities

Expenses are funded through contributions and directly impact revenue
recognition of restricted contributions. Risk of material misstatement is
related to the completeness of liabilities and expenses, and classification of
expenses.

Our response and significant findings
−

Perform substantive analytical procedures and trend analysis over expenses

−

Select a sample of expense transactions and agree to original invoices to ensure the proper classification of expenses

−

Review supporting documentation for significant accruals

−

Review of expense cut-off through the search for unrecorded liabilities

Findings: No issues were found
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Technology in the audit
We have utilized technology to enhance the quality and effectiveness of the audit.

Areas of the audit where Technology and D&A routines were used
Tool
Journal Entry Analysis

Our results and insights
We evaluated the completeness of the journal entry population through a roll-forward of the entire GL.
We used KPMG application software (IDEA) to analyze journal entries and apply certain criteria to identify potential high-risk journal entries
for further testing.
The GL roll consists of a summation of all automated and manual journal entries posted during the fiscal year and a comparison of the
calculated amounts to the account balances as at and for the year ended December 31, 2020 as reported by management.
The GL extraction was found to be complete and containing all automated and manual journal entries recorded during the year. We were
able to use this complete extraction for our testing of high-risk journal entries.
We developed a set of high-risk criteria and applied the criteria to the entire population of journal entries. Journal entries containing high
risk conditions were tested to ensure they were supported by proper documentation and followed the journal entry initiation and approval
controls and process in place. We did not find any exceptions in our testing over journal entries.
No issues were identified.
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Uncorrected differences and Corrected Adjustments
Differences and adjustments include disclosure differences and adjustments.
Professional standards require that we request of management and the Board of Directors that all identified differences be corrected.

Uncorrected differences
We did not identify differences that remain uncorrected.

Corrected adjustments
We did not identify any adjustments that were communicated to management and subsequently corrected in the financial statements.
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Appendix 1: Required Communications
Engagement letter

Management representation letter

The objectives of the audit, our responsibilities in carrying out our audit, as well as
management’s responsibilities, are set out in the engagement letter as provided by
management.

In accordance with professional standards, a copy of the management
representation letter is provided to the Board of Directors. Management has
provided you with a copy of the representation letter for the audit of the financial
statements.

Auditors’ report

Audit findings report

The conclusion of our audit is set out in our draft auditors’ report attached to the
draft financial statements.

As attached.

Required inquiries
Professional standards require that we obtain your views on risk of fraud and other
matters. We make similar inquiries of management.

—
—

—

—
—

What are your views about fraud risk at the entity?
How do those charged with governance exercise effective oversight of
management’s processes for identifying and responding to the risk of fraud in
the entity and internal controls management has established to mitigate these
fraud risks?
Are you aware of or have you identified any instances of actual, suspected, or
alleged fraud, including misconduct or unethical behaviour related to financial
reporting or misappropriation of assets? If so, have the instances been
appropriately addressed and how have they been addressed?
Is the entity in compliance with laws and regulations?
Has the entity entered into any significant usual transactions?
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Appendix 2: Audit Quality and Risk Management
KPMG maintains a system of quality control designed to reflect our drive and determination to deliver independent, unbiased advice and opinions, and also
meet the requirements of Canadian professional standards.
Quality control is fundamental to our business and is the responsibility of every partner and employee. The following diagram summarizes the key elements of
our quality control system.

Governance and
leadership

What do we mean by audit quality?
Audit Quality (AQ) is at the core of everything we do at KPMG.

Code of
conduct, ethics
and
independence

Associating
with the right
clients

Appropriately
qualified team,
including
specialists

Smart audit
tools and
technology

Methodology
aligned with
professional
standards

Transparency

Industry
expertise and
technical
excellence

Honest and
candid
communication

Performing
audits in line
with our AQ
definition

Audit Quality Framework

We believe that it is not just about reaching the right opinion,
but how we reach that opinion.
We define ‘audit quality’ as being the outcome when audits are:
–

–

Executed consistently, in line with the requirements
and intent of applicable professional standards within a
strong system of quality controls and
All of our related activities are undertaken in an
environment of the utmost level of objectivity,
independence, ethics, and integrity.

Our AQ Framework summarises how we deliver AQ. Visit our
Audit Quality Resources page for more information including
access to our Audit Quality and Transparency report.
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Appendix 3: Current Developments
Public Sector Accounting Standards
Standard

Summary and implications

Impact of COVID-19

−

In response to the impact of COVID-19 on public sector entities, PSAB has approved deferral of all upcoming
accounting standards by one year and will issue non-authoritative guidance on the effects of COVID-19.

Asset Retirement
Obligations

–

The new standard is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2022. The effective date was deferred
by one year due to COVID-19.

–

The new standard addresses the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of legal obligations
associated with retirement of tangible capital assets in productive use. Retirement costs will be recognized as an
integral cost of owning and operating tangible capital assets. PSAB currently contains no specific guidance in this
area.

–

The ARO standard will require the public sector entity to record a liability related to future costs of any legal
obligations to be incurred upon retirement of any controlled tangible capital assets (“TCA”). The amount of the
initial liability will be added to the historical cost of the asset and amortized over its useful life.

–

As a result of the new standard, the public sector entity will have to:

Revenue

•

Consider how the additional liability will impact net debt, as a new liability will be recognized with no
corresponding increase in a financial asset;

•

Carefully review legal agreements, senior government directives and legislation in relation to all controlled
TCA to determine if any legal obligations exist with respect to asset retirements;

•

Begin considering the potential effects on the organization as soon as possible to coordinate with resources
outside the finance department to identify AROs and obtain information to estimate the value of potential
AROs to avoid unexpected issues.

–

The new standard is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The effective date was deferred
by one year due to COVID-19.

–

The new standard establishes a single framework to categorize revenues to enhance the consistency of revenue
recognition and its measurement.

–

The standard notes that in the case of revenues arising from an exchange transaction, a public sector entity must
ensure the recognition of revenue aligns with the satisfaction of related performance obligations.
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–

The standard notes that unilateral revenues arise when no performance obligations are present, and recognition
occurs when there is authority to record the revenue and an event has happened that gives the public sector entity
the right to the revenue.

Standard
Financial Instruments and
Foreign Currency
Translation

Employee Future Benefit
Obligations

Summary and implications
–

The accounting standards, PS3450 Financial Instruments, PS2601 Foreign Currency Translation, PS1201
Financial Statement Presentation and PS3041 Portfolio Investments are effective for fiscal years commencing on
or after April 1, 2022. The effective date was deferred by one year due to COVID-19.

–

Equity instruments quoted in an active market and free-standing derivatives are to be carried at fair value. All other
financial instruments, including bonds, can be carried at cost or fair value depending on the public sector entity’s
choice and this choice must be made on initial recognition of the financial instrument and is irrevocable.

–
–

Hedge accounting is not permitted.

–

In July 2020, PSAB approved federal government narrow-scope amendments to PS3450 Financial Instruments
which will be included in the Handbook in the fall of 2020. Based on stakeholder feedback, PSAB is considering
other narrow-scope amendments related to the presentation and foreign currency requirements in PS3450
Financial Instruments. The exposure drafts were released in summer 2020 with a 90-day comment period.

–

PSAB has initiated a review of sections PS3250 Retirement Benefits and PS3255 Post-Employment Benefits,
Compensated Absences and Termination Benefits. In July 2020, PSAB approved a revised project plan.

–

PSAB intends to use principles from International Public Sector Accounting Standard 39 Employee Benefits as a
starting point to develop the Canadian standard.

–

Given the complexity of issues involved and potential implications of any changes that may arise from the review
of the existing guidance, PSAB will implement a multi-release strategy for the new standards. The first standard
will provide foundational guidance. Subsequent standards will provide additional guidance on current and
emerging issues.

A new statement, the Statement of Remeasurement Gains and Losses, will be included in the financial
statements. Unrealized gains and losses incurred on fair value accounted financial instruments will be presented
in this statement. Realized gains and losses will continue to be presented in the statement of operations.

SCHEDULE 'C', APPENDIX 1
PAGE 22
2021-04-09

Standard
Public Private
Partnerships (“P3”)

Summary and implications
–

PSAB has proposed new requirements for the recognition, measurement and classification of infrastructure
procured through a public private partnership. PSAB in the process of reviewing feedback provided by
stakeholders on the exposure draft.

–

The exposure draft proposes that recognition of infrastructure by the public sector entity would occur when it
controls the purpose and use of the infrastructure, when it controls access and the price, if any, charged for use,
and it controls any significant interest accumulated in the infrastructure when the P3 ends.

–

The exposure draft proposes that the public sector entity recognize a liability when it needs to pay cash or noncash consideration to the private sector partner for the infrastructure.

–

The infrastructure would be valued at cost, which represents fair value at the date of recognition with a liability of
the same amount if one exists. Cost would be measured in reference to the public private partnership process and
agreement, or by discounting the expected cash flows by a discount rate that reflects the time value of money and
risks specific to the project.

–

The final standard was approved in December 2020 with an issuance date of April 1, 2021 and an effective date of
April 1, 2023.
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Concepts Underlying
Financial Performance

–

PSAB is in the process of reviewing the conceptual framework that provides the core concepts and objectives
underlying Canadian public sector accounting standards.

–

PSAB has released four exposure drafts for the proposed conceptual framework and proposed revised reporting
model, and their related consequential amendments. Comments on the exposure drafts are due in May 2021.

–

PSAB is proposing a revised, ten chapter conceptual framework intended to replace PS 1000 Financial Statement
Concepts and PS 1100 Financial Statement Objectives. The revised conceptual framework would be defined and
elaborate on the characteristics of public sector entities and their financial reporting objectives. Additional
information would be provided about financial statement objectives, qualitative characteristics and elements.
General recognition and measurement criteria, and presentation concepts would be introduced.

–

In addition, PSAB is proposing:

•

Relocation of the net debt indicator to its own statement and the statement of net financial assets/liabilities,
with the calculation of net debt refined to ensure its original meaning is retained.

•
•
•

Separating liabilities into financial liabilities and non-financial liabilities.

•

Removal of the statement of remeasurement gains (losses) with the information instead included on a new
statement called the statement of changes in net assets (liabilities). This new statement would present the
changes in each component of net assets (liabilities), including a new component called “accumulated other”.

Restructuring the statement of financial position to present non-financial assets before liabilities.
Changes to common terminology used in the financial statements, including re-naming accumulated surplus
(deficit) to net assets (liabilities).
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Standard
International Strategy

Purchased Intangibles

Government Not-forProfit Strategy

Summary and implications
–

PSAB has reviewed all proposed options for its international strategy, and in accordance with its due process,
approved the option to adapt International Public Sector Accounting Standards when developing future standards.
PSAB noted that the decision will apply to all projects beginning on or after April 1, 2021.

–

An exposure draft to modify the GAAP hierarchy has been issued with responses due by February 15, 2021.

–

In October 2019, PSAB approved a proposal to allow public sector entities to recognize intangibles purchased
through an exchange transaction. Practitioners are expected to use the definition of an asset, the general
recognition criteria and the GAAP hierarchy to account for purchased intangibles.

–

PSAB has approved Public Sector Guideline 8 which allows recognition of intangibles purchased through an
exchange transaction. Narrow-scope amendments were made to Section PS 1000 Financial statement concepts
to remove prohibition on recognition of intangibles purchased through exchange transactions and PS 1201
Financial statement presentation to remove the requirement to disclose that purchased intangibles are not
recognized.

–

The effective date is April 1, 2023 with early adoption permitted. Application may be retroactive or prospective.

–

PSAB is in the process of reviewing its strategy for government not-for-profit (“GNFP”) organizations. PSAB
intends to understand GNFPs’ fiscal and regulatory environment, and stakeholders’ financial reporting needs and
concerns.

–

PSAB released a second consultation paper in January 2021 which summarizes the feedback received to the first
consultation paper. It also describes options for the GNFP strategy and the decision-making criteria used to
evaluate the options. PSAB recommends incorporating the PS4200 series with potential customizations into
PSAS. This means reviewing the existing PS4200 series to determine if they should be retained and added to
PSAS. Incorporating the updated or amended PS4200 series standards in PSAS would make the guidance
available to any public sector entity. Accounting and/or reporting customizations may be permitted if PSAB
determines there are substantive and distinct accountabilities that warrant modification from PSAS. Comments on
the second consultation paper are due in May 2021.
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TO:

The Chair and Members
of the Board of Directors,
Credit Valley Conservation

SUBJECT:

FRIENDS OF THE CREDIT CONSERVATION AWARDS
UPDATE

PURPOSE:

To inform the Board of Directors of CVC about the status of
the Friends of the Credit Conservation Awards

BACKGROUND:
Since 1986, the Credit Valley Conservation Board of Directors has awarded those who
make a significant positive impact on the health of the Credit River watershed through
the Friends of the Credit Conservation Awards Program. The Program fulfills Goal 8,
Direction 7 of the 2020-2022 Strategic Plan by recognizing and celebrating the talents
and achievements of volunteers and partners.
Each year, the program begins with the opening of nominations in September, followed
by the formation of a sub-committee of Board of Directors of CVC. Nominations are
reviewed and recipients are selected to be presented for approval to the full board of
directors the following February. The program concludes with a celebration banquet of
board members, CVC staff, award recipients, and their nominators in March.
On February 14, 2020 the report entitled “2019 Conservation Award Recommendations
from the Conservation Awards Sub-Committee”, Resolution #18/20, was approved by
the Board of Directors of CVC. The award recipients are:
Youth Achievement – Deon Sing, Brampton
Outstanding Volunteer – Janice McClelland, Caledon
Environmental Awareness – Michael Sklad, Orangeville
Corporate Leadership – Four X Development, Brampton
Corporate Leadership – Citibank, Mississauga
Green Cities – Tara Day-Orzechowski, Adam Tompkins, and Michael Hoy,
Brampton
7. Watershed Excellence – Gavin Dandy, Hillsburgh
8. Landowner Stewardship – Sarah Mailhot, Mono
9. Legacy Donor – Takla Foundation, Orangeville
10. Legacy Donor – TPC Toronto at Osprey Velley / Humeniuk Foundation, Caledon
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
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With the onset of Covid-19, the awards banquet scheduled for March 2020 was
postponed until further notice. As the pandemic continued to restrict public gatherings,
the event was cancelled. Award recipients have not yet received their award or been
publicly recognized for their achievements.
ANALYSIS:
With limitations on indoor gatherings still in place due to the pandemic, and in lieu of a
banquet for the 2019 Friends of the Credit Conservation Awards, CVC has developed an
alternate approach to recognize the recipients. The recipients will be presented with their
award and celebrated through a media campaign this spring. The following will occur:







Award recipients and nominators will be notified by email of their success, with
CVC’s CAO and local Board members cc’d.
Staff will hand-deliver awards to recipients and take a commemorative photo.
Safe working measures will be followed during the delivery.
Customized news releases will be issued to watershed media highlighting local
award recipients.
CVC’s website will be updated with a full list of nominees and award recipients.
A 10-day social media campaign will highlight an award winner each day.
All nominees that did not receive an award will be mailed a letter and certificate
of recognition, signed by CVC’s Chair.

Staff also recommend that, given ongoing pandemic restrictions, the 2020 program
scheduled to be presented in 2021 be cancelled, resulting in a one-year gap in the
awards program.
The 2021 program, presented in 2022, will be confirmed in the fall. The decision to open
award nominations will depend on the community’s ability to have contributed
significantly to environmental change this year, considering public health restrictions due
to Covid-19.
COMMUNICATIONS PLAN:
The communications plan for this project is identified as part of the approved work plan
for the year for the Friends of the Credit Conservation Awards program and includes:



website updates and media campaign, celebrating 2019 award recipients
when confirmed, notification to the Board of Directors of CVC on the status of the
2021 Friends of the Credit Conservation Awards program
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FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:
The banquet venue deposit of $1430 for Carl’s Catering The Glen for the March 2020
Friends of the Credit Conservation Awards banquet was provided in the 2020 budget
under the Corporate Services, Education and Outreach division, account 301-310. The
deposit continues to be held with the venue until the program resumes.
There is no additional financial impact.
RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION:
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the report entitled “Friends of the Credit
Conservation Awards Update” be received and appended to the minutes of this meeting
as Schedule ‘D’.
Submitted by:

____
_____
Holly Nadalin
Program Manager, Community
Outreach & Education

___________________________
Jeff Payne
Director, Corporate Services
Recommended by:

__________________________
Deborah Martin-Downs
Chief Administrative Officer

_
_______
Andrew Kett
Senior Manager, Education & Outreach
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TO:

The Chair and Members
of the Board of Directors,
Credit Valley Conservation

SUBJECT:

PROVINCIAL CONSULTATION ON GROWING THE SIZE
OF THE GREENBELT

PURPOSE:

To request endorsement by the Board of Directors of CVC of
CVC staff’s comments on the Province’s Growing the Size of
the Greenbelt initiative

BACKGROUND:
At the March 12, 2021 CVC Board of Directors (the ‘Board) meeting an information item
in the form of a briefing note was provided titled ‘Consultation on Growing the Size of the
Greenbelt’ (dated March 5, 2021). The briefing note provided background, review, and
summary of the Province’s Growing the Size of the Greenbelt initiative (ERO posting 0193136), including some of CVC staff activities and anticipated comments to date.
Since that time, CVC staff has further consulted with partner municipalities, Conservation
Authorities (CAs) and other stakeholders (including the Greenbelt Foundation) to
coordinate and finalize comments on this initiative. Comments to Conservation Ontario
were due March 29, 2021 (see attached Schedule ‘E’, Appendix 1) and are due to the
Province April 19, 2021.
ANALYSIS:
Based on comments provided to the province in previous provincial plan reviews, and
upon further consultation with partners, CVC staff has finalized comments on the
province’s Growing the Size of the Greenbelt initiative. In general, these comments include
the following:





Support for the initiative to grow the greenbelt, including the proposed study area
of the Paris-Galt Moraine;
Encouraging the province to work closely with affected municipalities and CAs in
defining the boundaries of any Greenbelt area expansions/URV delineations,
based on logical and the best available scientific information;
Include the portion of the west side of the Credit River between Norval and Glen
Williams as an Urban River Valley (URV) – recognizing the eastern side of the river
in this location is designated Greenbelt Natural Heritage System;
Consideration to use municipal natural heritage system boundaries (where they
exist in approved municipal Official Plans and have/can be surveyed) for URV
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(replacing the current boundaries of 30 meters from river banks) and Greenbelt
expansion boundaries; and
Include the Rattray Marsh Provincially Significant Coastal Wetland into the
Greenbelt – along with consideration for including the Lake Ontario shoreline as
an integral east-west Urban Greenbelt Linkage (same policies as URVs –
particularly, only public lands subject to associated specific Greenbelt policies).

Attached as Schedule ‘E’, Appendix 1 are CVC staff’s more detailed comments. Schedule
‘E’, Appendix 2 illustrates the location of the Greenbelt in Halton Hills. Halton Hills has
requested that the west side of the Credit River between Norval and Glen Williams be
designated as an URV the general location of which is illustrated in Schedule ‘E’, Appendix
3 and more specific boundaries in Schedule ‘E’, Appendix 4.
COMMUNICATIONS PLAN:
Copies of the attached comments will be forwarded to the province, member municipalities
and adjacent CAs for their consideration and/or information.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:
There is no financial impact to CVC for this project.

CONCLUSION:
The province has requested comments on their Growing the Size of the Greenbelt
initiative. At the March 12, 2021 Board meeting CVC staff included an information item in
the form of a briefing note, detailing the background, review and summary of the initiative
and CVC staff’s activities and preliminary comments at that time.
In further consultation with partner municipalities, CAs and other stakeholders CVC staff
have compiled final comments which were provided to Conservation Ontario to consider
in their comments to the province. The deadline for providing comments to the province
on this are due April 19, 2021.

RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION:
WHEREAS – the province has requested comment on their Growing the Size of the
Greenbelt initiative (ERO posting #019-3136); and
WHEREAS CVC supports the expansion of the Greenbelt area – including expanding
the Greenbelt Natural Heritage System and Urban River Valley designations beyond
existing designated areas – in consultation with affected municipalities and Conservation
Authorities to ensure a logical and scientific approach to their delineation;
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THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the report entitled “Provincial Consultation on
Growing the Size of the Greenbelt” be received and appended to the minutes of this
meeting as Schedule ‘E’; and
THAT the Board of Directors endorse CVC staff’s comments attached as Schedule ‘E’,
Appendix 1 to this report; and further
THAT the attached comments referenced above be sent to the province, partner
municipalities and adjacent CAs for their consideration and/or information.
Submitted by:

__________________________
Josh Campbell
Director, Planning and Development Services
Recommended by:

__________________________
Deborah Martin-Downs
Chief Administrative Officer
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Consultation on growing the size of the Greenbelt
(ERO#019-3136)
Consultation Table
Please submit comments to Nicholas Fischer (CO) by March 29th, 2021
(mailto:nfischer@conservationontario.ca)
Name:
Conservation Authority: Credit Valley Conservation
As a reminder, please submit one comment table per CA. Thank you.

Consultation on growing the size of the Greenbelt
Discussion Questions
What are your thoughts on the initial
focus area of the Study Area of the Paris
Galt Moraine?

CA Comments
The expansion over the Paris Galt Moraine is an
important step to further protecting Ontario’s freshwater
systems (i.e., headwaters and source water protection)
areas. Although the Study Area is located outside of
CVC’s jurisdiction, CVC staff are supportive of this
potential focus area for further study, in consultation
with local municipalities and Conservation Authorities
(Grand River Conservation Authority).

What are the considerations in moving
from a Study Area to a more defined
boundary of the Paris Galt Moraine?

It is expected that a more defined boundary will be based
on the hydrologic and geological feature and
characteristics, including an appropriate offset
dependent on consultation with local municipalities, CAs
and scientific information.
Considerations should be made to avoid inclusion of
future settlement areas and areas of Aggregate
designation to avoid policy conflict.

SCHEDULE 'E', APPENDIX 1
PAGE 2
2021-04-09

What are your thoughts on the initial
focus area of adding, expanding and
further protecting Urban River Valleys?

CVC staff is supportive of the Province’s intent to add,
expand and further protect Urban River Valleys by
providing municipalities with an additional consideration
on which to protect, and plan for future potential land
acquisition.
Within CVC’s watershed, the Credit River is currently
designated as Greenbelt Urban River Valley (URV) through
Brampton and Mississauga (including portions of Black and
Silver Creeks (tributaries to the Credit River) in Halton Hills.
The eastern side of the Credit River valley between Norval
and Glen Williams in Halton Hills is designated Greenbelt
Natural Heritage System, however, the westside of the
river valley has no greenbelt designation (as illustrated on
map 79 of the Greenbelt Plan: map division, and
enlargement – see attached Appendix 1). There may be
opportunity through this review to include this portion of
the Credit River as URV – such that the westside of the
Credit River valley is subject to the Greenbelt URV policies
(see attached Appendix #2 and #3). Further consultation
with Halton Hills and CVC staff should be undertaken to
potentially include this additional URV into the Greenbelt
Plan.

Do you have suggestions for other
potential areas to grow the Greenbelt?

In addition, CVC Staff suggest the Province consider
including municipal NHS lands (based on approved Official
Plans) that may extend beyond the existing 60 metre
offset for URVs (e.g., the greater of 60 metres from river
edge, or approved OP NHS boundary where surveyed data
exists). This would further support the stated goals and
objectives of the greenbelt plan, greenbelt NHS and URVs
– recognizing the important role URVs play in water
resource, biodiversity, and wildlife corridors/connection
to Lake Ontario.
Although not directly linked to the Credit River URV,
Rattray Marsh is a Provincially Significant Coastal
Wetland with unique and diverse characteristics
providing both ecological, hydrogeological, and
recreational value to the local and regional community –
and functionally connected to the Credit River via the
Lake Ontario shoreline and local NHSs.
Based on this, CVC staff recommend including Rattray
Marsh (PSCW) in the Greenbelt NHS designation.
Further, if there is consideration for an ‘east-west’ urban
greenbelt connection designation (see comment #6, e.g.,
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How should we balance or prioritize any
potential Greenbelt expansion with the
other provincial priorities mentioned
above? (see ERO posting for priorities)

Lake Ontario shoreline), Rattray Marsh would be ideally
situated as part of this larger connected system.
CVC staff acknowledge that the potential expansion of
the Greenbelt Plan needs to be carefully coordinated
with other Provincial priorities including growth
management and supporting infrastructure. As part of
this, robust municipal and provincial NHS planning should
occur to properly balance lands worthy of protection and
inclusion within the Greenbelt, while allowing growth to
occur to achieve municipal growth targets.
Opportunities to add new municipal NHS lands to the
Greenbelt as identified through Municipal
Comprehensive Reviews should continue to be explored recognizing that evaluation of growth options and
infrastructure needs will be assessed and should exclude
these lands as ‘take-outs’ from proposed expansions or
NHS development (and visa versa).

Are there other priorities that should be
considered?

Another item for consideration is to include ‘east -west’
water resource/ecological connections in addition to
URVs (e.g., Lake Ontario shoreline). Recognizing the
regional significance of the linkages and ecological
contributions the Lake Ontario shoreline provides, URVs
could be renamed ‘Urban Greenbelt Connections’ and
follow a similar policy approach (including only applying
greenbelt policies on public lands) incorporating
significant regional east-west connections as identified
and supported by local municipalities.

General Comments
Consultation on growing the size of the
CVC staff are in support of the Province’s intent to
Greenbelt (ERO#019-3136)
expand the Greenbelt especially at a time of anticipated
growth with municipalities undergoing Municipal
Comprehensive Reviews. This timing allows for an
analysis of current municipal NHSs, projected growth,
and seeking opportunities to further balance growth with
NHS protection through inclusion in the Greenbelt Plan,
where appropriate. The province is encouraged to further
consult with municipalities, CAs and stakeholders to
ensure a broad consultation and science based approach
to delineating and including Greenbelt expansions and/or
new URVs.
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Publicly Owned Lands along the Credit
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TO:

The Chair and Members
of the Board of Directors,
Credit Valley Conservation

SUBJECT:

CVC TELECOMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTURE
ADMINSTRATIVE POLICY

PURPOSE:

To seek approval from the Board of Directors for new fees and
and CVC’s updated Telecommunication Infrastructure
Administrative Policy.

BACKGROUND:
Credit Valley Conservation (CVC) has been approached several times by major cellular
telecommunications providers to install cellular base towers (cell towers) on conservation
areas owned, leased or managed by CVC. The installation of these towers would involve
the leasing of land for a fee (or other services) and the potential granting of easements
(disposition) to facilitate the construction, operation and maintenance of the towers.
In response to the requests, CVC developed a Cell Tower Administrative Policy in 2012
(internal policy - not a Board approved policy) that generally prohibited construction and
operation of cell towers within conservation areas based on concerns, at that time, about
potential impacts to human and wildlife health. Through Resolution #90/19 staff received
direction from the Board of Directors to update CVC administrative policy to allow
installation and operation of cell towers on conservation areas where feasible.
In 2019, also via Resolution #90/19 the Board of Directors approved staff to negotiate
terms with Rogers Communications Inc. to locate, as feasible, a cell tower facility at Upper
Credit Conservation Area (UCCA) in the Town of Caledon. UCCA was viewed as a
potential alternative location for a previously proposed tower location that was opposed
by local residents given the tower’s potential proximity to local residences. Following
direction from the Board, staff worked with Rogers staff to survey the property and confirm
UCCA as a suitable location. Just as CVC and Rogers were set to begin negotiation of
terms, the COVID pandemic hit and Rogers, like other telecommunications providers,
ceased work on a number of projects. CVC staff continue to pursue an agreement with
Rogers but no progress has been made since March 2020.
Staff are seeking approval of a new administrative policy that outlines the requirements
and procedures that will guide staff working with telecommunications providers to identify
conservation lands that could be suitable locations for cell tower installation. As well, the
policy outlines the process for negotiations and execution of telecommunications
agreements, where feasible.
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ANALYSIS:
Strategic Alignment
Both the Strategic Plan (2020) and the Conservation Areas Master Strategy (CAMS, 2018)
are founded on the vision of ‘a thriving environment that protects, connects, and sustains
us’. While CVC conservation areas have not typically been viewed as possible locations
for telecommunications infrastructure, we must adapt to a changing world. CAMS
identified that there are several change agents that impact conservation in the Credit River
watershed, including technology. Staff should pursue advancements that allow us to work
more effectively and efficiently, while offering improved services and experiences for
partners, residents, and visitors. CVC is also committed to service – providing our
customers, clients, partners, and visitors with customer-focused programs and services
that protect people and communities and connect people with nature.
Goal 5, Direction 7 of the Strategic Plan requires that CVC operationalize the CAMS by
implementing the Visitor Experience, Indigenous Engagement, and Land Acquisition
Plans. Within ten years, the outcome is expected to be conservation areas that provide
accessible natural spaces and unique environmental experiences for all to enjoy.
Goal 7, Direction 1 references “maintain our investment in information technology
infrastructure as critical corporate assets and platforms enabling staff to readily adapt to
business demands”. Which supports the investment in cellular infrastructure, as well as a
related ten-year outcome – tools and infrastructure that support program delivery.
CAMS is built on a foundation of four principles – Protect, Connect, Experience, and
Deliver – with several outcomes supporting or requiring telecommunications infrastructure
at CVC conservation areas. The Deliver principle asks that CVC implement technology
solutions that engage staff and visitors alike, based on current and future needs. Within
CAMS and the three plans fundamental to its delivery – Visitor Experience, Indigenous
Engagement, and Land Acquisition – the draft Visitor Experience Plan explicitly includes
several initiatives to be completed by 2028 that will require telecommunications
infrastructure at CVC conservation areas. These include:






Implement Electronic Fee Stations and Auto Gates at CVC parks, where feasible;
Implement a Point of Sale (POS), Booking System and/or Customer Management
Software to help organize, manage and respond to customer needs including
conservation area members, rental customers, reservations, event attendees and
general inquiries;
Explore new technology and join forces with technology partners to connect people
with nature and facilitate learning including public WIFI availability and access at
CVC parks, where feasible; and,
Implement infrastructure recommended in management plans for priority
conservation areas. The infrastructure will both require and provide opportunity for
installation of telecommunications hardware.

Further, agreements with telecommunications providers can provide numerous potential
direct benefits for CVC including:
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Enhanced cell and wireless signal reception, especially at rural CAs;
Opportunity to negotiate contract pricing and service improvements on existing
communication infrastructure and services for CVC;
Improved customer service at conservation areas (e.g. shorter processing times
for payments, bookings, reservation, memberships or automated infrastructure);
Annual lease fees/payments for cell tower infrastructure on CVC lands.

Policy Directions
Highlights of the revised policy include (full policy attached as Schedule ‘F’, Appendix 1):
 The overall recommendation is for a cautious approach to permitting the use of
conservation areas as suitable sites for installation and operation of
telecommunication infrastructure including siting details;
 Telecommunication infrastructure may be permitted in all conservation areas and
in all zones within an area. This is consistent with zoning use permissions within
conservation areas for other essential servicing infrastructure such as water and
wastewater;
 Nature Reserve conservation areas and nature reserve zones within those areas
may be considered as potential sites for telecommunication infrastructure only if
all other options are not feasible;
 Permission also includes installation of necessary infrastructure on CVC buildings
and other non-land assets where feasible and necessary;
 Compensation for use of CVC assets for construction and operation
telecommunication infrastructure can be in the form of annual lease fees (as per
schedule to be reviewed and approved at a later date) and/or in exchange for other
services that support program delivery for CVC operations, staff, and visitors (e.g.
reduced fees, increased bandwidth, etc.); and,
 Board of Directors approval required for all applications including required
easements and leases.
CVC’s internal land permitting policies remain in place and any development of this nature
will require internal approvals after careful consideration of any potential environmental
impacts. If other suitable sites for towers are identified on CVC lands, they will be permitted
based on the merit of each specific site. All final easements and leases related to
telecommunication infrastructure on CVC conservation areas shall be approved by the
Board of Directors.
Next Steps
Research suggests potential impacts, particularly to wildlife, but also recognizes the need
for more study. While CVC staff do not have the expertise to draw overall conclusions
from the human health studies, Health Canada (website) has stated that “Based on the
available scientific evidence, there are no health risks from exposure to the low levels of
radiofrequency EMF [electromagnetic fields] which people are exposed to from cell
phones, cell phone towers, antennas and 5G devices.” Staff will periodically review
updated research to assess the current knowledge and update CVC policy as required.
CVC staff will be proactive in working with local land use authorities and
telecommunications companies to identify CVC conservation areas that are suitable sites
for required infrastructure.
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CVC staff will continue to consult with other conservation authorities and regional
municipalities (e.g. York, Halton and Peel) to refine the standard lease agreements and
fee structure.
COMMUNICATIONS PLAN:
Cell tower application processes are established through Industry Canada but guided by
local land use authorities. Requirements for public information centres and notifications
via print and social media are also determined through the same Industry Canada and
municipal standards. CVC website and social media feeds will be utilized as needed.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:
Annual lease fee revenue can be used to support various PARCS projects such as asset
maintenance and repair, trail development, land acquisition or infrastructure builds.
Staff time spent participating in the application process, coordinating site access for the
proponent, and negotiating lease terms or exchange of services will be recovered through
the application fee identified in Table 1. These are the initial proposed fees and CVC staff
will continue to consult with other municipalities and conservation authorities to ensure
these fees are reflective of current market agreements. The fees will be updated annually
through the Conservation Areas Fees Report.
Table 1. Fees are exclusive of HST. Fees will increase at the rate of CPI per year.
#
1
2

3

4

Description of Fees and Charges
Carrier/tower consolidator tower installation
application fee – per application
Annual site license fee for tower and
compound installation for first carrier in urban
designated area
Annual site license fee for tower and
compound installation for first carrier in rural
designated area
Annual co-location license fee for each colocated carrier after first carrier

5

Other installations (e.g. on or in CVC facilities)

6

Service credits or discounts in lieu of fees are
permissible at the discretion of the Director of
Corporate Services and the CAO

2021 Fees
$2,000
$20,000

$17,000

15% of rent
payable to
Licensee by colocating carrier
TBD (as needed)
Ability to waive or
decrease fees in
return for service
credits or discounts
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CONCLUSION:
Green spaces such as conservation areas can provide suitable sites for
telecommunication infrastructure. Permitting use of conservation areas for
telecommunication related infrastructure will help achieve strategic directions from the
CVC Strategic Plan (2020) and Conservation Areas Master Strategy (2018). Lease fee
revenues will support existing PARCS infrastructure and land acquisition projects.
Services exchanged in lieu of lease fees will decrease IT/IM service delivery costs across
the organization. Conservation area visitors and local communities will also benefit from
improved telecommunication services. Staff will continue to take a cautious approach
about siting telecommunication infrastructure and continue to review emerging science.

RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION:
WHEREAS Credit Valley Conservation has developed a new administrative policy to
generally permit Telecommunication Infrastructure in Conservation Areas; and
WHEREAS the Credit Valley Conservation Strategic Plan (2020) and Conservation Areas
Master Strategy (2018) include directions that would support the use of conservation areas
for cell tower installations; and
WHEREAS the use of conservation areas for the installation, operation, and maintenance
of telecommunication infrastructure would further the objectives of Credit Valley
Conservation pursuant to Section 20 of the Conservation Authorities Act, R.S.O. 1990;.
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the report entitled ‘CVC Telecommunication
Infrastructure Administrative Policy’ be received and appended to the minutes of this
meeting as Schedule ‘F’; and
THAT the staff continue to negotiate terms with Rogers Communications Inc. to locate, as
feasible, a cell tower at Upper Credit Conservation Area in the Town of Caledon; and
THAT the policy outlined in Schedule ‘F’, Appendix 1 of this report be approved; and
THAT the fees outlined in Table 1 of this report be approved; and further
THAT staff take necessary action to implement the policy.
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Submitted by:

__________________________
Eric Baldin
Manager, Land Planning and Management

__________________________
Jeff Payne
Deputy CAO and Director, Corporate Services
Recommended by:

__________________________
Deborah Martin-Downs
Chief Administrative Officer

__________________________
Terri Leroux
Senior Manager, PARCS
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PURPOSE

A policy providing the framework for the approval and execution of licence
agreements for the installation of third-party telecommunications
equipment on Credit Valley Conservation (CVC) buildings, facilities, and
conservation areas.

2.0

SCOPE

This policy applies to all CVC conservation areas – owned, managed
and leased.
Across Canada, all telecommunication facilities are regulated
by Innovation, Science and Economic Development Canada. All
proposed telecommunication facilities are required to first consult with
the local land use authority (i.e. municipalities). The land use
authority’s role is to provide comments and advise Industry Canada of
community concerns recommend either concurrence or nonconcurrence to Industry Canada. CVC can have a dual role in this
process – either through supporting the land use authority’s advice to
Industry Canada through environmentally-focused comments; or as a
potential subject of the application as land owner of proposed locations
for infrastructure.
3.0

BACKGROUND

CVC has been approached by major cellular telecommunications
providers (Bell and Rogers) to install cellular base towers (Cell Towers)
in various locations within CVC conservation areas. The installation of
these towers involves the leasing (disposition) of land for a fee (or
exchange of services) and the granting of easements to facilitate the
construction, operation and maintenance of the towers. The stated
desire of the telecommunications companies is to improve service to
their respective customers.
CVC staff have updated a literature review on the potential impacts of
telecommunication infrastructure on human and wildlife health (see
Section 5). While CVC staff do not have the expertise to draw overall
conclusions from the human health studies, Health Canada (website)
has stated that “Based on the available scientific evidence, there
are no health risks from exposure to the low levels of radiofrequency
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EMF [electromagnetic fields] which people are exposed to from cell
phones, cell phone towers, antennas and 5G devices.” Several studies
have demonstrated negative impacts on wildlife, but these are
typically observed within close proximity to infrastructure such as
towers. Based on the literature review, the impacts on wildlife may be
mitigated by locating infrastructure at least 300m away from
ecologically sensitive areas, wildlife, and residences where feasible.
CVC conservation areas are generally sizeable enough that they would
have sufficient space to locate towers in locations with minimal
impacts on wildlife health.
CVC Strategic Plan (2020) and Conservation Areas Master Strategy
(CAMS, 2018) Directions
Both the Strategic Plan (2020) and the CAMS (2018) are founded on
the vision of ‘a thriving environment that protects, connects, and
sustains us’. While CVC conservation areas have not typically been
viewed as possible locations for telecommunications infrastructure, we
must adapt to a changing world. There are several change agents that
impact conservation in the Credit River watershed, including
technology. We will pursue advancements that allow us to work more
effectively and efficiently, while offering improved services and
experiences for partners, residents, and visitors. CVC is also
committed to service – providing our customers, clients, partners, and
visitors with customer-focused programs and services that protect
people and communities and connect people with nature.
Goal 5, Direction 7 of the Strategic Plan requires that CVC
operationalize the CAMS by implementing the Visitor Experience,
Indigenous Engagement, and Land Acquisition Plans. Within ten years,
the outcome is expected to be conservation areas that provide
accessible natural spaces and unique environmental experiences for all
to enjoy.
Goal 7, Direction 1 references “maintain our investment in information
technology infrastructure as critical corporate assets and platforms
enabling staff to readily adapt to business demands”. Which supports
the investment in cellular infrastructure, as well as a related ten-year
outcome – tools and infrastructure that support program delivery.
CAMS is built on a foundation of four principles – Protect, Connect,
Experience, and Deliver – with several outcomes supporting or
requiring telecommunications infrastructure at CVC conservation
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areas. The Deliver principle asks that CVC implement technology
solutions that engage staff and visitors alike, based on current and
future needs. Within CAMS and the three plans fundamental to its
delivery – Visitor Experience, Indigenous Engagement, and Land
Acquisition – the Visitor Experience Plan explicitly includes several
initiatives
to
be
completed
by
2028
that
will
require
telecommunications infrastructure at CVC conservation areas. These
include:
▪
▪

▪

▪

Implement Electronic Fee Stations and Auto Gates at CVC parks,
where feasible;
Implement a Point of Sale (POS), Booking System and/or
Customer Management Software to help organize, manage and
respond to customer needs including conservation area
members, rental customers, reservations, event attendees and
general inquiries;
Explore new technology and join forces with technology partners
to connect people with nature and facilitate learning including
public WIFI availability and access at CVC parks, where feasible;
and,
Implement infrastructure recommended in management plans
for priority conservation areas. The infrastructure will both
require
and
provide
opportunity
for
installation
of
telecommunications hardware.

Making CVC conservation areas more widely available for
telecommunication infrastructure could also benefit local communities
and visitors to our properties.
While it is noted there are potential impacts to wildlife health,
conservation areas can play a role in mitigating those impacts and still
achieve strategic and community objectives through thoughtful
placement of telecommunication infrastructure. Staff will continue to
take a cautious approach about siting infrastructure and continue to
review emerging science. As such the following policy is established.
4.0

POLICY
4.1

Telecommunication infrastructure may be permitted
to be constructed, maintained or operated on CVC
conservation areas and all zones, where feasible,
within conservation areas (see Conservation Lands
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Management Manual [CLMM] - Policy 2.2.D).
Permission also includes installation of necessary
infrastructure on CVC buildings and other non-land
assets where feasible, permissable and necessary.
4.2

Nature Reserve conservation areas and nature
reserve zones within all conservation areas may be
considered as potential sites for telecommunication
infrastructure only if all other options are not
feasible and where impacts would be minimal and
mitigatable.

4.3

Telecommunication infrastructure that may be
permitted must conform to all Federal, Provincial
and Municipal policies regarding the same and shall
have regard for aesthetic concerns within a
conservation area.

4.4

Telecommunication infrastructure, if not owned by
CVC, will require an easement representing a
disposition of land and will follow the Easement
CLMM Policy (3.2.F).

4.5

All other terms and conditions related to the
construction,
management
or
operation
of
telecommunication infrastructure on CVC land will
addressed in a Lease Agreement. This includes, but
is not limited to, working with telecommunications
providers to, where possible, consider infrastructure
design options that are appropriate to the local
environment.

4.6

Compensation to CVC in exchange for use of CVC
conservation areas shall come in the form of set
fees, depending on the type of infrastructure, or in
exchange for other services as negotiated between
CVC and telecommunication provider.

4.7

Fees will be confirmed annually
Conservation Areas Fees report.

4.8

All
final
easements
and
leases
related
telecommunication infrastructure on CVC

through

the
to
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conservation areas shall be approved by the Board of
Directors.
4.9

CVC staff are authorized to work with service
providers and local land use authorities to assess
possible
locations
and
conduct
preliminary
negotiations on easement and lease terms.

4.10 Updates on new leases for telecommunication
infrastructure will be provided to the Board of
Directors yearly as part of the annual Land
Acquisition and Disposition report.
4.11 CVC staff roles and responsibilities – CVC Planning
staff will intake all applications as per protocols from
the local land use authorities as it relates to CVC
permit or approval. CVC Land Management (PARCS)
staff lead negotiations related to easement and lease
terms. IT/IM staff will assist with negotiations
related to the infrastructure itself as well as any
potential exchange of services in combination with
or in lieu of fees as outlined in 4.7 above.
4.12 CVC’s internal land permitting policies remain in
place and any development of this nature will
require
internal
approvals
after
careful
consideration
of
any
potential
environmental
impacts. If other suitable sites for towers are
identified on CVC lands, they will be permitted based
on the merit of each specific site.
4.13 Staff shall adhere to telecommunications protocols
established by local land use authorities.
4.14 Staff shall recognize the jurisdiction of Industry
Canada with respect to the implementation of
appropriate health, safety, and environmental
standards in exercising its authority to approve the
location of telecommunications facilities.
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SUPPORTING RESEARCH

Background
CVC has been approached several times by major cellular
telecommunications providers to install cellular base towers (cell towers)
on conservation areas owned, leased or managed by CVC. No installations
have been approved to date, but it is anticipated that CVC will continue to
receive similar proposals for other CVC properties as the need for
enhanced telecommunications infrastructure increases. CVC developed a
cell phone tower policy in 2012 that was based on information from a
literature review completed to determine the potential impacts to human
health, wildlife heath, public outlook, and land aesthetics that would
result from the tower in the long-term.
Below is an updated summary of the primary literature to assess the
potential impacts of telecommunications infrastructure on the health of
humans and other species and to support CVC’s proposed approach to
permitting the installation and operation of telecommunications
infrastructure on CVC lands.
Radiofrequency Radiation and Cell Towers
Cell tower base stations are considered to have low energy intensities
compared to other man-made sources of radiofrequency (hereafter
shortened to “RF”) radiation in our environment, including television and
radio broadcasting facilities, radar, medical equipment, and microwave
ovens. The intensity of RF radiation from base stations decreases rapidly
with distance (Levitt and Lai 2010, Valberg et al. 2007), and the RF
radiation around cell base stations is generally far lower than the public
exposure limits set by Health Canada (Health Canada 2015).
The amount of RF energy absorbed by organisms depends strongly on the
frequency and strength of the RF source, as well as the body size of the
individual and their orientation and distance from the source (Valberg at
al. 2007; Levitt and Lai 2010; ICNIRP 1998). At present, there is
agreement in the scientific community that acute exposure to RF energy
at high intensities results in adverse health effects associated with tissue
heating and nerve stimulation. However, some authors note these effects
are unlikely to result from cell phone base stations because they operate
at very low RF intensities with power densities ranging between
approximately 0.0001 – 1 mW/cm2 (Levitt and Lai 2010, Verschaeve
2014, BioInitiative 2012).
There is a relatively large body of literature reporting various biological
non-thermal effects of low-intensity RF exposure. Again, review papers
show differing views on whether these studies collectively provide
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sufficient evidence to confirm adverse effects (e.g. Levitt and Lai 2010,
Roosli et al. 2010, Valberg et al. 2007).
Impacts on Human Health
The human health effect that has been most heavily studied is the
possible link between low-intensity RF exposure and elevated risk of
cancer; particularly brain tumors and childhood leukemia. Results from
existing research at this time have mixed results. A review conducted by
Levitt and Lai (2010) of two studies that look at impacts of cell phone
base stations on human health indicate that the incidence of cancer cases
was significantly higher in patients living within 400m of a cell tower for 5
to 10 years (Eger et al. 2004; Wolf and Wolf 2004). However, a study
conducted by Meyer et al. (2006) showed no increase in the incidence of
cancer in populations living near cell towers. Similarly, an older review by
Valberg et al. (2007) stressed the results from an ongoing international
study coordinated by the International Agency for Research on Cancer
(IARC) and the World Health Organization (WHO) that has identified no
association of risk of cancer with cell phone use, which typically has
higher RF intensities than what would be expected from chronic exposure
to cell phone base towers.
In addition to evaluating the risk of developing cancer as a result of
exposure to radiation from cell towers, some studies have looked at the
development of other non-life-threatening adverse health effects. The
majority of low-intensity RF exposure studies are either epidemiological
studies or laboratory experiments where volunteers self-report their
symptoms. These studies generally describe non-specific symptoms of illhealth such as headache, sleepiness, dizziness, digestive disturbance and
cognitive difficulties. Roosli et al. (2010) identified 17 studies meeting
their review criteria that were included in a meta-analysis. A link to RF
exposure was shown in three of eight studies reporting headache
symptoms, the most commonly investigated symptom. Effects on sleep
were shown in only one of seven studies. No association was found
between RF exposure and all other studied effects including
concentration, dizziness or cognitive difficulties. When considered
together, Roosli et al. (2010) found no consistent patterns with respect to
symptoms or types of exposure. However, another review article by Levitt
and Lai (2010), which had overlap with Roosli et al. (2010) but also
analyzed different studies, did find some evidence for non-specific health
symptoms associated with humans living near base stations.
CVC staff do not have the expertise to draw overall conclusions from the
human health studies. However, the following statements from
authoritative sources may provide some guidance on the human health
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impacts of cell tower base stations. Health Canada (website) has stated
that “Based on the available scientific evidence, there are no health
risks from exposure to the low levels of radiofrequency EMF
[electromagnetic fields] which people are exposed to from cell phones,
cell phone towers, antennas and 5G devices.” The American Cancer
Society notes: “At this time, there’s no strong evidence that exposure to
RF waves from cell phone towers causes any noticeable health effects.
However, this does not mean that the RF waves from cell phone towers
have been proven to be absolutely safe. Most expert organizations agree
that more research is needed to help clarify this, especially for any
possible long-term effects.”
Impacts on Plants and Wildlife
Below is a summary of results from a CVC literature review investigating
the effects of RF radiation primarily on wildlife health (CVC 2019). Results
from the literature review are detailed in an internal memo (CVC 2019)
and a table summarizing some wildlife impacts is presented in Appendix A
of the memo and below. The key negative impacts to wildlife that are
especially relevant to cell towers located in or near natural areas are
summarized below:
▪
▪
▪

Exposure to RF waves causes pollinating insects to become less
abundant and experience modifications to their behaviour.
Migratory birds are attracted to illuminated towers which results in
high mortality rates during migration.
There is decreased abundance and reproductive success of bird
species which breed in areas adjacent to cell towers.

Cell tower impacts on wildlife appear to diminish with increasing distance,
although there are a number of caveats with respect to the different
studies due to differences in study quality and methodology, strength of
impacts, and bias introduced by field settings. Review studies emphasize
that there are still clear knowledge gaps and a need for additional studies
before general conclusions on intensity and range of effects can be drawn.
Management Guidelines
There are few published guidelines about best management practices for
installing cell phone base towers that expand beyond the national safety
requirements. RF levels from base stations generally decrease with
distance from the device, however this relationship is not always
straightforward and can be complicated by local topography, obstruction
from buildings, and other factors (Lazaro 2016; Valberg et al. 2007;
Waldam-Selsam 2016).
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CVC recommends that cell towers be constructed at least 300m away
from ecologically sensitive areas and wildlife where feasible. Staff will
continue to take a cautious approach about siting infrastructure and
continue to review emerging science.
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Appendix A. A summary of literature review of studies investigating the
effects of RF waves on plant and wildlife health. Included are relevant
articles that met one or more of the following criteria in the literature
review: (1) peer-reviewed primary articles, (2) conducted in field
settings, (3) featured cell tower base stations specifically, and (4)
featured tower distances and RF frequencies and intensities similar to
what would be expected at the proposed cell tower location at UCCA (i.e.
< 300m, 900 – 1800 MHz radiation frequencies and 1-2 V/m2 field
intensities).
Taxa

Life History
Trait

Effect

Summary

Reference

Birds:
House
Sparrows

Abundance

negative

• Strength of electromagnetic
radiation was shown to be strongly
associated with reduced density of
European House Sparrows (Passer
domesticus)

Balmori &
Hallberg 2007

Birds:
House
Sparrows

Abundance

negative

• Strength of electromagnetic
radiation from cell phone base
towers was shown to be strongly
associated with reduced abundance
of European House Sparrows
(Passer domesticus)

Everaert &
Bauwens 2007

Birds:
Greater &
Gunnison
Sage
Grouse

Abundance

negative

• Distance to cell tower base stations
was a strong factor associated with
the extirpation of both species from
areas in the US where they
previously lived

Wisdom et al.
2011

Birds:

Abundance,
migratory
behaviour

negative

• Case-based evidence that cell
towers disorient and kill hundreds of
migratory songbirds from strikes at
night, particularly towers that light
up

Bedford
Audubon
Society 1999

Social
behaviour,
abundance,
reproduction

negative

• Declines in colony strength, egg
laying rate, abundance, and honey
storing ability in bees exposed to RF
for two months

Sharma and
Kumar 2010

• Abundance of pollinating beetles,
hoverflies, and wasps on two
Mediterranean islands decreased
with increasing RF energy levels
from cell phone towers. Of note,
radiation intensity did not vary

Lazaro 2016

migratory
songbirds

Insects:
Honey Bees

Insects:
beetles,
hoverflies,
and wasps

Abundance

negative
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Summary

Reference

significantly between distances of
50, 100, 200, and 400m from
towers.
Insects:
bees, bee
flies, and
butterflies

Abundance &
richness

neutral

• Abundance of bees, bee flies, and
butterflies either increased or were
not affected by increased RF levels.
Richness of bees was also not
affected. This suggests that
variation in sensitivity to radiation
or habitat preferences may cause
differences in susceptibility to cell
towers.

Lazaro 2016

Insects:
Ants

Behaviour

negative

• Experimentally generated RF waves
of 900 MHz at 1.0 V/m2 field
intensity, below levels that could be
expected near cell towers, disrupted
ant nerve cells and caused them to
lose their ability to use visual and
olfactory cues for navigation

Cammaerts
2012

Insects:
Honey Bees

Behaviour

negative

• Exposure to mobile cell phone RF
waves caused Honey Bees in
colonies to exhibit “worker piping”
behaviour, which is typically
associated with swarming in
response to danger or stress

Favre 2011

Birds: White
Stork

Behaviour,
Reproductive
Success

negative

• Observed strange behaviour from
White Stork pairs that nested within
100m of the cell phone towers,
including parents fighting over
nesting material, chicks dying of
unknown causes, and adults with
failed nests standing “passively” in
front of cell tower antennae

Balmori 2005

• White Storks (Ciconia ciconia) in
Spain that nested within 200m of
cell tower antennae experienced
significantly reduced nest
productivity compared to those that
nested greater than 300m away.
40% of nests within 200m did not
have any chicks, while this was the
case for only 3% of nests that were
farther than 300m.
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Mammals:
bats

Behaviour

negative

• Many different bat species exhibited
reduced activity and flying passes in
areas closer to radar towers (within
400m) and exposed to higher levels
of RF waves (> 2 V/m2) compared
to control sites (400m+ away and 0
V/m2).

Nicholls &
Racey 2007

Birds: Great
and Blue
Tits

Behaviour

negative

• Socially dominant Great Tits (Parus
major) moved their nest sites away
from areas exposed to higher levels
of Rf energy, and subordinate Blue
Tits (Cyanistes caeruleus) took their
place, suggesting cell tower
radiation created unfavourable
breeding habitat and influenced the
birds’ behaviour.

Reijt et al.
2007

Reproductive
Success

neutral

• Increased RF exposure did not
influence nesting success or nestling
growth rates of Great and Blue Tits.

Bird- whole
community,
Common
Myna,
Spotted Owl

Species
Richness,
Reproductive
Success

negative

• In Ludhiana, five sites within 100m
of a cell phone tower had lower
avian species richness and
reproductive success of Common
Myna (Acridotheres tristis) and
Spotted Owl (Strix occidentalis)
compared to a control site greater
than 500m away

Kler et al.
2018

Amphibians:
Common
Frog

Growth and
Survivorship

negative

• Exposed Common Frog (Rana
temporaria) tadpoles to phone base
stations located 140m away for two
months. The exposed tadpoles
exhibited low movement
coordination, asynchronous growth,
and high mortality (90%) compared
to a control group that was
protected from the radiation.

Balmori 2010

Insects:
Honey Bee

Survivorship,
reproductive
success

mixed

• Queens exposed to relatively low
levels of RF waves from mobile cell
phones exhibited increased
mortality during pupation. If
Queens hatched, their reproductive
success was not affected.

Odemer &
Odemer 2019
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Life History
Trait

Effect

Summary

Reference

Insect: Fruit
flies

Reproductive
Success

mixed

• Drosophila melanogaster fruit flies
exhibited reduced reproductive
capacity when exposed to RF waves
at different distances, although the
effect declined considerably at
distances greater than 1m and
radiation intensities smaller than 1
uW/cm2.

Panagopoulos
2004

Plants:
several
species of
trees

Overall health

negative

• A large-scale monitoring study in
Germany (n = 10 years) revealed
that trees located closer to cell
phone base towers were damaged
on the side facing the tower. The
evidence for this was particularly
strong because trees were always
damaged on only one side, there
were no external indications of
infestations (i.e. insects, fungi,
viruses), trees of all different
species were affected equally, and
trees in the same location that were
shielded by buildings were not
affected.

WaldmannSelsam et al.
2016

Plants:
Beech and
Spruce
seedlings

Growth,
physiology

mixed

• Unaltered growth and
photosynthetic activity, but
decreased calcium and sulphur
levels in Beech leaves at increasing
power densities

Schmultz et al.
1996

Plants:
Black Locust

Physiology

negative

• Reduced chlorophyll levels in
seedlings

Sandu et al.
2005
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BRIEFING NOTE
CREDIT VALLEY CONSERVATION
1255 Old Derry Road, Mississauga, Ontario L5N 6R4
Tel: (905) 670-1615 Fax: (905) 670-2210

March 19, 2021
To: Karen Ras, Chair
Stephen Dasko
Matt Mahoney
Michael Palleschi

Tom Adams, Vice Chair
Johanna Downey
Martin Medeiros
Grant Peters

John Brennan
Ann Lawlor
John Stirk
Ron Starr

From: Deborah Martin-Downs, CAO
Re: CVC Role in Town of Erin Servicing and Settlement Master Plan and
Urban Centre Wastewater Servicing Class Environmental Assessment - Update

Introduction
This briefing note has been prepared in response to an email received on March 11th, 2021 from Ken
Cowling expressing concerns for CVC’s role in approvals of the Erin Wastewater Treatment Plant
(WWTP) Environmental Assessment (EA). It provides a history of our involvement in this file as well
as the current status of the project and is an update to the Briefing Note previously presented to the
Board on February 1, 2019.
Erin Servicing and Settlement Master Plan (SSMP)
In 2004, the Town of Erin approved the Official Plan for the Town of Erin which included an urban
boundary expansion. The plan also outlined the need for the Town to create a Servicing and
Settlement Master Plan (SSMP) which the Town of Erin initiated in the spring of 2008. This plan was
defined as Phase 1 and 2 of the 2007 Class Environmental Assessment (EA) process. Using this twophased approach, the master plan examined municipal servicing components, focusing primarily on
water and wastewater systems. Phase 1 was composed of data collection and a background study
including the characterization of environmental conditions. The Phase 2 developed and evaluated
alternative servicing solutions which lead to the establishment of future servicing scenarios.
This SSMP addressed environmental effects from existing development serviced by septic systems
on the cold-water fishery of the West Credit River. It also noted potential effects resulting from future
growth. An area identified for urban expansion contained a number of sensitive environmental
features including Provincially Significant Wetlands, watercourses and floodplains.
CVC has been a partner in the SSMP since 2008, providing review and comments on the terms of
reference and input into study consultant selection. As specified in the terms of reference, CVC led a
multi-disciplinary monitoring program to monitor and document existing environmental conditions
within the study area.
In May 2011 the Existing Conditions Report - Environmental Component was finalized, providing an
overview of the environmentally significant features, functions, and linkages throughout the study area

INFORMATION ITEM #7.1
PAGE 2
2021-04-09
and was incorporated as a chapter in the Background Conditions and Issues report Phase 1 of the
SSMP. It also integrated the planning and servicing study components.
The Town of Erin and their consultant were responsible for completing the assimilative capacity
assessment for the West Credit River using previously collected information on existing and future
development lands. Water quality effluent criteria and environmental impact assessment procedures
are established by The Ministry of the Environment, Conservation, and Parks (MECP).
The Erin SSMP was completed in September 2014. Currently both Erin and Hillsburgh are serviced
with private septic systems. The SSMP found that approximately 50% of existing lots within the Town
of Erin are undersized and do not meet a minimum size for septic compliance requirements. CVC
noted some evidence of septic failure on water quality in the West Credit River.
The plan’s preferred solution to meet existing need and support future population growth was to
convey all wastewater flows to a single wastewater treatment plant (WWTP). The plan outlined
stringent effluent criteria for the WWTP to meet provincial water quality guidelines. It recommended
that the WWTP be situated south east of Erin Village, with treated WWTP effluent being discharged to
the West Credit River between 10th Line and Winston Churchill Boulevard (see attached figure).
Town of Erin Urban Centre Wastewater Servicing Municipal Class EA (Erin WWTP EA)
On April 13, 2016, the Town of Erin issued a Notice of Commencement for Urban Centre Wastewater
Servicing Class Environmental Assessment (Phases 3 & 4). During the EA study, the SSMP’s
preferred solution was refined with an updated assimilative capacity study, natural environment
impact assessment and other social/cultural, environmental, technical, and economic assessments.
CVC’s role for Phases 3 & 4 of the EA was as a commenting agency and member of the Technical
Steering Committee.
In this role CVC ensured that the proposed WWTP and other associated infrastructure options can
ultimately be permitted through our regulatory authority for natural hazards. We also provided data
and technical expertise on other environmental factors such as source water protection, fish and fish
habitat and water quality and quantity.
Although not required by the EA, the Town also undertook a review of two plant options. One option
involved subsurface effluent disposal, rather than discharging to the West Credit River. It was
concluded that the use of subsurface discharge for a multi-plant solution was not viable due to
environmental constraints and higher capital and operating costs. The preferred wastewater servicing
option was a state-off-the-art wastewater treatment plant with surface discharge to West Credit River
east of the Town of Erin. The area was chosen because of the higher surface water flows in the reach
which provide greater assimilative capacity.
The EA has identified the potential to service a population of 14,559 including both existing
communities and new development areas. However, the Official Plan for the Town of Erin will
establish population growth targets.
CVC staff provided a final sign-off letter for the EA on June 27, 2018. We reviewed the work that had
been undertaken to date including the technical analysis and conclusions in the EA and found the
Town’s response to our comments satisfactory. In our letter, CVC staff noted several items to be
further considered during the detailed design phases of the project:
1. Addressing specific sanitary pumping station locations as they relate to our regulatory hazard
management functions under Ontario Regulation 160/06;
2. Considering additional mitigation measures to address impacts of potential exceedances of
chronic chloride water quality guidelines at full operational out-flows;
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3. Considering additional mitigation measures for potential thermal impacts of effluent on
receiving systems at outfall locations; and
4. Additional details as to how/what overflow/by-pass risk management actions will be
implemented to mitigate impacts should an effluent overflow or by-pass situation arise.
The Town of Erin received final approval for the EA from MECP on August 29, 2019. It is important to
note that the MECP is the approval authority for EAs in Ontario and will be responsible for setting
specific conditions and discharge requirements for the future WWTP as part of the Environmental
Compliance Approvals process through other legislation. CVC does not approve the EA but has
provided comments throughout the EA process and has reviewed the work that has been undertaken
to date including the technical analysis and resulting conclusions in the EA.
A sketch of the location of the proposed Erin WWTP and discharge route is attached as Appendix 1:
Erin WWTP Sketch
Detailed Design
The Town has now initiated the detailed design phase of the project where CVC will review plans
through our regulatory role and provide comments based on our areas of interest for project
components located within CVC’s regulated area. During this phase, specification of wastewater
treatment technology and outfall design, as well as spill contingency plans will also be finalized. At this
time, the Town continues to work on the plant design and although CVC staff has been engaged in
discussions with the Town to address our comments, CVC has not yet received any submissions for
review. There is no expected submission date at this time.
When a submission is received and all comments CVC provides are satisfactorily addressed, CVC will
issue a permit pursuant to Ontario Regulation 160/06 for the construction of the plant components
located within CVC’s regulated areas. As noted above, MECP has the final say on the conditions
under which the plant will operate and is responsible for issuing the associated Environmental
Compliance Approvals.
Designation Request under the Impact Assessment Act (Federal)
In a parallel process, on February 25, 2021 a formal request was received by the Federal Minister of
Environment and Climate Change from a coalition of organizations including the Belfountain
Community Organization (BCO), West Credit River Watch (WCRW), Izaak Walton Fly Fishing Club
(IWFFC), Trout Unlimited Canada - Greg Clark Chapter (TUC), Ontario Streams (OS), and Ontario
Rivers Alliance (ORA) to request that the Erin WWTP Project be designated for a federal
Environmental Assessment (EA) per s.9(1) of the Impact Assessment Act (IAA). The project, as
proposed, is not a designated project as described in the Physical Activities Regulations at this time
and the impact assessment process under IAA only applies to designated projects.
The Impact Assessment Agency of Canada has invited comment, including directly from CVC as a
participant in the completed Erin WWTP EA. The request aims to confirm whether any permits,
approval or other decisions administered by CVC apply to the project and to provide any additional
comments we feel appropriate. CVC staff has prepared and submitted a response to this request for
comment which was due March 22nd.
If the Project were designated by the federal Minister, the Town of Erin would be prohibited from
commencing the Project and would be required to submit an Initial Project Description, thereby
commencing the planning phase of the IAA. During the planning phase, the Impact Assessment
Agency of Canada would determine whether an impact assessment is required. It is expected that the
Minister will respond to the original request by the coalition of groups by May 26, 2021.

Erin WWTP Location Sketch
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Ontario Region
600-55 York Street
Toronto ON M5J 1R7

Région de l'Ontario
600-55 rue York
Toronto ON M5J 1R7

March 8, 2021

Sent by email

Invitation for Input
Deborah Martin-Downs, Credit Valley Conservation Authority
Debbie Ramsay, Niagara Escarpment Commission
Dear Colleague:
Subject: Designation Request for the Proposed Erin Wastewater
Treatment Plant Project under the Impact Assessment Act
On February 25, 2021, the Minister of Environment and Climate Change received
a request to designate the proposed Erin Wastewater Treatment Plant Project
(the Project) under subsection 9(1) of the Impact Assessment Act (the IAA). The
designation request from the Coalition for the West Credit River is enclosed
(Enclosure 1).
The Proposed Project
The Town of Erin (the proponent) is proposing to construct, operate and maintain
a new wastewater treatment plant located southeast of the Village of Erin in
Wellington County, Ontario. The Project would provide wastewater servicing to
the Village of Erin and Hillsburgh. Treated effluent would be discharged to the
West Credit River at Winston Churchill Boulevard.
The Project as proposed is not a designated project as described in the Physical
Activities Regulations. The impact assessment process under the IAA only
applies to designated projects.
Further information on the Project can be found on the Town of Erin’s website at
www.wastewater.erin.ca.
Provincial Process
The Town of Erin has completed a Municipal Class Environmental Assessment
for the Project to meet the requirements of Ontario’s Environmental Assessment
Act. In June 2018, the Government of Ontario received three Part II Order
…/2

www.canada.ca/iaac

www.canada.ca/aeic

INFORMATION ITEM #7.2
PAGE 2
2021-04-09

-2requests asking that the Town of Erin be required to prepare an individual
environmental assessment. On August 29, 2019, the Government of Ontario
decided that an individual environmental assessment is not required and allowed
the Town of Erin to proceed with the Project, subject to any other permits or
approvals required. The Final Environmental Study Report and the Government
of Ontario’s approval with reasons are available on the Town of Erin’s project
website at www.wastewater.erin.ca/study_documents.
Designation Request
Under subsection 9(1) of the IAA the Minister may, by order, designate a physical
activity that is not prescribed in the Physical Activities Regulations. The Minister
may do this, if, in the Minister’s opinion, the physical activity may cause adverse
effects within federal jurisdiction or adverse direct or incidental effects (resulting
from federal decisions, including funding), or public concerns related to those
effects warrant the designation. In accordance with subsection 9(4) of the IAA, it
is expected that the Minister will respond, with reasons, to the request by
May 26, 2021.
The Impact Assessment Agency of Canada (the Agency) will review information
about the Project, any concerns expressed by the public and Indigenous groups,
expert advice from federal authorities and input from provincial ministries,
municipalities and other authorities to prepare a recommendation to the Minister
on whether to designate the Project. If the Project were designated by the
Minister, the Town of Erin would be prohibited from carrying out the Project and
would be required to submit an Initial Project Description, thereby commencing
the planning phase of the IAA. During the planning phase, the Agency would
determine whether an impact assessment is required.
Additional information regarding the process for designation requests can be
found at the following link: https://www.canada.ca/en/impact-assessmentagency/services/policy-guidance/designating-project-impact-assessmentact.html.
Invitation for Input
The Agency notes that the Municipal Class Environmental Assessment process
completed by the Town of Erin included consultation with the Credit Valley
Conservation Authority and the Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry.
However, to further support the Agency’s analysis of the designation request, we
wish to invite the views and input from representatives of your organizations.
…/3
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-3In particular, the Agency would like to confirm whether any permits, approvals or
other decisions administered by your organization apply to the Project.
x If applicable, would any of those involve consultation with the public and
Indigenous groups?
x If applicable, what environmental, social, economic or health issues would
those requirements address?
x Would the mechanism set conditions and, if so, what relevant issues
would those conditions address?
x Are there norms that the proponent would be reasonably expected to
follow to manage effects (such as standard design features and mitigation,
and existing guidance documents)?
In general, please confirm whether the Town of Erin has addressed the interests
and issues of importance to your organization. The Agency will be pleased to
receive any other comments. Given the legislated timeline for the Minister to
make a decision, your response is requested by Monday, March 22, 2021
Responses to the request should be emailed to Jeff Balsdon, Project
Manager, at Jeffrey.Balsdon@Canada.ca. Jeff can also be reached at 902219-4228.
In the coming days, a Registry page for the Project will be available on the
Canadian Impact Assessment Registry Internet site at
iaac-aeic.gc.ca/050/evaluations
Important Note: All records produced, collected or received in relation to the
designation request process—unless prohibited under the Access to Information
Act or Privacy Act—are considered public and may be released. The Agency's
Submission Policy1 determines which submitted information can be shared
publicly, and what should remain private. For further information on how we
protect your privacy, please refer to the Privacy Notice.2
…/4

1
2

https://www.iaac-aeic.gc.ca/050/evaluations/participation/conditions
https://www.iaac-aeic.gc.ca/050/evaluations/protection
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-4If you have any questions regarding the designation process or the response
sheet, please do not hesitate to contact Jeff by telephone or email.
Sincerely,

Anjala Puvananathan
Director, Ontario Region
Enclosure: Designation request letter from the Coalition for the West Credit
River

c.c.:

Tyler Slaght, Credit Valley Conservation Authority
Lisa Grbinicek, Niagara Escarpment Commission
Sara Eddy, Fisheries and Oceans Canada
Ian Thornton, Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry
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Multicultural Engagement and
Diversity, Equity, Inclusion and Racism (DEIR)
Initiatives at CVC
Ashoo Anand
Senior Coordinator, Multicultural Outreach

1

Why Do We Need to Focus on this Topic?

https://www150.statcan.gc.ca/n1/pub/11-631-x/11-631-x2019002-eng.htm

2
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What Does this Mean to CVC?
Diverse Ethnic Origins

Growing Multilingualism

3

CVC Multicultural Outreach Program (2009)

4
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Diversity and Nature – Our Dilemma
Minimal or no connection
with local natural areas

CA Parks an alien concept
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Common Barriers for Accessing Nature for Immigrants

Low Levels of English
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CA Parks not connected by Transit
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Common Barriers for Accessing Nature for Immigrants

Fear of the Outdoors

Social Cultural Norms
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Multicultural Outreach Program Achievements
30,000 Participants
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Our Partners in the Journey

• 7 Community Groups
• 20 ESL/LINC Schools
• 7 Faith Groups
• 3 Health Groups
• 8 Libraries
• 18 Senior Groups
• 12 Settlement Agencies
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Name of the Organization
Afghan Women's Organization
African Community Services
AMICA
Brampton Library - Mount Pleasant Vlillage
Brampton Multicultural Community Centre
Caledon Community Services
Caledon Seniors
Canada Pakistan Friendship Association
Carefirst Seniors and Community Services
Catholic Crosscultural Services
Catholic Crosscultural Services- Brampton
Central Parkway English Learning Centre
Centre for Education and Training
Chinese Association of Mississauga
College Boreal
Congress of Black Women
Courtneypark Library
Credit Valley Senior Club
Cyril Clark Library (Brampton)
Dixie Bloor Neighbourhood Centre
Dufferin -Peel Catholic District School Board
Dun Dix ESL Centre
ESL Centre - Logos Baptist Church
Extendicare Long Term Care Mississauga
Feng Hua Senior Association
Frank Mckenie Library, Mississauga
Gayatri Pariwar
Georgetown Seniors Center
Greater Toronto Language School
Green Scared Spaces
Gujrati Samaj Brampton
Gujrati Senior Club of Mississsauga
Heartland Creditview Community Centre
Hindu Heritage Centre
Holland Christian Homes
Huron park Community Centre
ICNA Relief
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Name of the Organization
Indus Community Services, Brampton
Indus Community Services, Mississauga
Ismali Community Jamatkhana
Lagos baptist Church
Lorne Park Library
Malton Neighborhood Services (Brampton)
Malton Neighborhood Services (Mississauga)
McLaughlin ESL Center
Mississauga Valley Library
Mood Walks CMHA Halton
Muslim Community Services
Muslim Welfare Centre
Nanaksar Gurudwara
Newcomer Cente of Peel
Ontario Seniors Forum
Our lady Mount Carmel School
Palestine House Educational and Cultural Centre
Peel District School Brd (LINC)
Peel Multicultural Council
Polycultural Immigrant and Community Services
Punjabi Community Health Services
Punjabi Ladies Brayden Club
River Grove Community Centre
Sahara Seniors Services
Sauga Stroke Breakers
Senior Tamil Society of Peel
South Common Community Centre
South Common Library
South Fletcher's Library
Sri Lankan-Canadian Community Services
St. Alphonsa Syro Malabar Catholic Cathedral
St. Kateri Tekakwitha Catholic Learning Center
The Centre for Skills and Development
The Learning Centre
Vietnamese Society of Mississauga
William Osler Health
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CVC Diversity Committee (2014)

• Foster inclusiveness and equity
at CVC
• Make recommendations with a
diversity lens
• Enhance understanding
through diversity initiatives –
lunch and learns, articles,
guest speakers,
meditation/prayer room, pride
flag, etc.
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Alignment with Strategic Plan and
Corporate Values (2015, 2020)
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CVC Adopted Diversity and Inclusion Charter (2019)
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Anti Racism Advisory Committee (2020)
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Connecting with Our Indigenous Partners
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•

Indigenous Engagement
Working Group (2018)

•

Credit Valley Trail Indigenous
Experience Implementation
Plan (2020)

•

Indigenous Engagement
Guidelines (2021)
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Diversity and Inclusion Statement (2021)
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Review of Internal and External CVC
Policies and Programs (2021)
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•

CVC hired consultants (Taneja
Consulting Inc and S.M.D
Consulting Inc.) to assess
racial systemic barriers at CVC

•

Consultant's report and
recommendations will be
complete in Fall 2021
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Visionary and Inspiring Senior Leadership

•

Non-traditional clients

•

Unconventional programs

•

Unique partnerships

•

An atmosphere of openness
and acceptance
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inspired by nature
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